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17 May 2017 

Mr John Dixon 
Branch Secretary 
Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
23-33 Mary Street 
SURREY HILLS NSW 2010 

 

via email: dixon@nswtf.org.au 
  andrew.rigele@au.gt.au 

Dear Mr Dixon, 

Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch Financial Report 

for the year ended 31 December 2016 - [FR2016/362] 

I acknowledge receipt of the financial report of the Australian Education Union New South Wales 

Teachers Federation Branch.  The documents were lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the 

FWC) on 11 April 2017.  On 1 May 2017 the Registered Organisations Commission (the ROC) 

commenced and some functions of the FWC were transferred to the ROC.  Your matter 

FR2016/362 was transferring to the ROC on this date.  

The financial report has now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect 

of the report lodged. 

The financial report was filed based on a primary review.  This involved confirming that the 

financial reporting timelines required under s.253, s.265, s.266 and s.268 of the Fair Work 

(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act) have been satisfied, all documents required under 

s.268 of the RO Act were lodged and that various disclosure requirements under the Australian 

Accounting Standards, RO Act and reporting guidelines have been complied with.  A primary 

review does not examine all disclosure requirements. 

Please note that the financial report for the year ending 31 December 2017 may be subject to an 

advanced compliance review. 

I make the following comment to assist you when you next prepare a financial report.  You are not 
required to take any further action in respect of the report lodged.  The ROC will confirm this 
concern has been addressed prior to filing next year’s report. 

Disclosure of transactions with another reporting unit 

Within the Reporting Guidelines when transactions occur with another reporting unit, the amount 

and the name of each reporting unit are to be disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Cash Flow Statement or the notes.  Within the 

general purpose financial report although the amount relating to the capitation fees paid and cash 

inflows and outflows are reported the name of the each reporting unit the transaction relates to is 

not clearly identified.   

In future years please ensure that all transaction with another reporting unit are disclosed in 

accordance with the Reporting Guidelines.  
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Reporting Requirements 

New Reporting Guidelines will apply to organisations and branches with financial years 

commencing on or after 1 July 2017.  Updates and information on the new guidelines will be 

provided through the ROC website and the subscription service. 

On the ROC website is a number of factsheets in relation to the financial reporting process and 

associated timelines.  The most recent copy of the Reporting Guidelines and a model set of 

financial statements can also be found.  The ROC recommends reporting units use this model as it 

will assist in ensuring compliance with the RO Act, the s.253 Reporting Guidelines and the 

Australian Accounting Standards.  Access to this information may be obtained via this link. 

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on (03) 9603 0731 or via email at 

joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au. 

Yours sincerely 

 
Joanne Fenwick 
Financial Reporting Specialist 
Registered Organisations Commission 
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New South Wales Teachers Federation 
a branch of the Australian Education Union 

AEU NSW Teachers federation Braner ABN 86 Goo 1:.0 69 7 

.Oll\erlBdgt\1~3010, ),rt•g·l '':>['\J') ,lJ00 • 02'1;.lf2J8C · V\.'v\.'ISV>tforg.d 

NSW PRESIDENT: rv'J L rte Mu ne•·' • NSW GENERAL SECRETARY' O'ln ') xon 

11 April 2017 

Bernadette O'Neill 
General Manager 
Fair Work Commission 
GPO Box 1994 
Melbourne VIC 3001 

In reply please quote: GS353/Apr2017/JD:pm 

Re: Financial Statements for the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch for financial period ended 31 December 2016 

Dear Ms O'Neill 

In accordance with s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, I hereby lodge: 

(a) A copy of the AEU NSWTF Branch Financial Report for the financial period ending 31 
December 2016 (Attachment A) 

(b) Branch Secretary's Certificate that the document lodged is a copy of the document 
provided to members and presented to the meeting of the Branch Executive of the AEU 
NSWTF Branch on 4 April2017 (Attachment B) 

Yours sincerely 

ohn Dixon 
Branch Secretary 



ATTACHMENT B 

Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
S268 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 

CERTIFICATE BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER 

Certificate for the period ended 31 December 2016 

I, John Dixon, being the Branch Secretary of the Australian Education Union New South Wales 
Teachers Federation Branch certify: 

• that the document lodged herewith is a copy of the full report for the Australian Education 
Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch for the period ended 31 December 
2016 referred to in s268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

• that the full report was provided to members of the reporting unit on 11 April 2017; and 

• that the full report was presented to a meeting of the Branch Executive on 4 April 2017 in 
accordance with s266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer 
Name of prescribed designated officer 
Title of prescribed designated officer 
Dated 

John Dixon 
Branch Secretary 
11 April 2017 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS f-EDERATION 13RANCI 1 

COM.MITTEE OF MANAGEMENT STATEMENT 

On the 4 April 2017 the Committee of Management (the Executive) of the Australian Education Union New South 
Wales Teachers redcration Branch passed the foUowing resoluuon in relation to the general purpose financ1al 
report (GPFR) for the year ended 31 Deccmher 2016: 

The Executive declares that in iL~ opinion: 

(a) the [Ulanciai statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards; 

(b) thc- financial statements and notes comply with the reporting guidcl.incs of the General Manager; 

(c) the financial statements and notes gtvc a true and fa1r vJew of the financial performance, financial 
posiuon and cash flows of rhe reporting unit for the financial year to wh1ch they relate; 

(d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the .reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable; and 

(e) dunng the fmancial year to which the GPI·1~ relates and smce the end of that year: 

(i) meetings of the committee of management were held in accordance with the rules of the 
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned; and 

(ii) the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed m accordance with the:: ntles of the 
organisation including the mles of a branch concerned; and 

(iii) the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and ma.u11ained in accordance Wlth 
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

(iv) where the organisauon consists of two or more reporting units, the financial records of the 
reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner with each of the 
other reporting units of the organisation; and 

(v) where informauon has bee.n soughr in any request by a member of the reporting unjt or 
General Manager duly made under section 272 of the l•air Work (Registered Organisations) Act 
2009 has been provided to the member or General Manager; and 

(vi) where any order for inspection of financial records has been made by the Fair Work 
Commission under section 273 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, there has 
ueen compliance. 

(t) no revenue has been derived from undertaking recovery of wages activity durmg rhe reporting period. 

Thts declaration ~~made in accordance \vith a resolution of the Committee of I\lanagemcnt. 

Signature of designated officer: ___ , ____ , __ ~-~ .. ·---.. -.... -- .. ,._, ___ .... -----·--·------ .. _ 

N •m< '"" title of dosign.rod offi""· ........ M.\1.\\>,._t:;.: .I\~~ 1. .... \/.:0 ';, ....... C.v. \ l(< .0 'I\ 1\.) 

o •• ,u .................................................. ! \.!r .. \1-P.I.} . ·························· 
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AUSTRi\LlAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDI~RA110N BRANCII 

OPERATI NG REPOR'l' 

The committee presents its report on the reporting unit for the financial year ended 31 December 2016. 

Review of principal acLivities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of 
those activities during the year 

The principal activity of the entity during the ftnancial year was promotion of union activities 'l.'llithin the education 
sector. No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

The Australian Education Union :'-Jew South Wales Teachers Federation Branch Executive scr the following 
strategic objectives for the year 2015-2016: 

Increase Government funding to public schools and TAI·l~ institutes. 
E nhance and support the professional status of Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation !3ranch members in public education. 
Protect and promote quality teaching and learn.ing. 
Protect and enhance the industrial rights of Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch members. 
Promote human rights and social justice. 

The principal activities of the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch during 
the ftnancial year have focussed on the achievement of these strategic objectives. 

In relation to the first objective, the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers f'edcration Branch "I 
give a Gonski" campaign at the national, state and school community level focussed on getting community and 
government support for the replacement of the existing inequitable federal schools funding model by a new 
funding model based on the findings of the Gonski Schools Funding review Panel, i.e. funding all schools to the 
resource standard necessat)' for every student to be given the opportunity to succeed regardless of their family 
background or circumstances. T he J\EU campaigned hard for the election of a federal government which would 
comm.it to and honour a better education for all Australian children. 

ln the face of the increasing privatisation of T AFE, the Stop TAPE Cuts campaign was prosecuted by the 
Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch Campaigning focussed on the House 
of Representatives inquiry into TAFE. The Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation 
Branch worked closely with the AEU Federal Office and the ACTU to maximise broader union participation and 
the number of submissions to this inquiry, i\s part of building the campaign, and in order to maximise the protlle 
of the inquiry, we nominated 3 June NationalTAFE Day and activities were held in TAFE campuses around the 
country. 

The union has worked with members employing authorities to improve the status of the profession .in all sectors 
through advocacy and suppon for the Professional Standards for Teachers, introduction of professional 
qualifications for TAFE Teachers as well as further recognition through improved remuneration for teachers and 
educacion workers, improved working conditions and representation on various professional bodies such as the 
Board of Studies and The NSW Institute of Teachers (now named BOSTES). 

The Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch has, in conjunction with the AEU 
Federal office and the broader trade union movement, made various submissions to lnquiries in relation to the 
industrial relations legislation. 

Significant changes in financial affairs 

During 2015 the AEU NSW Branch became the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
l;ederation Branch and the NSW T eachcrs l •'ederation (the state registered organisation) was de-registered by the 
NSW Industrial Commission and the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch 
was registered as a federal o rganisation in the state jurisdiction. This resulted in the transfer of all assets and 
liabilities of the NSW Teachers Federation to the new entity of Australian Education Union New South Wales 
Teachers Federation Branch. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCAI10N UNION NEW SOUTI f \'{IJ\LES TEACTJERS rEDERi\TfON BRANCH 

OPERATING REPORT 

Right of members to resign 

Members may resign from the union in accordance with rule 17. which reads as follows: 
"17- Resignaaon from membership and termination of eligibility 

(l) Subject to sub-rule 17(1A) a member becomes ineligible for membership of the Union when he/she no 
longer meets the conditions of eligibility for membership of the Union. 

(1 A) The following persons shall after the date referred to in sub-rule 5(12) be eligible to retain membership of the 
Union notwithstanding the fact that they arc no longer eligible for membership within the conditions of 
ehgJ.bility for membership set out in rule 5: 

(a) members who are eligible for membership pursuan t to paragraphs 5(3)(a). (b) or (c) and are: 

seconded by their employer to non-teaching duties. or 

(ii) appointed by the Tvtinister for Education to any Board, Committee or statutory authority 

(b) members who were formerly eligible for membership pursuant to paragraph 5(4)(a), (b) or 

(c) and have commenced to be employed elsewhere tn the Victorian 1-::ducation Department or in a 
technical and further education institution or by the Technical and Further Education Board or are 
seconded by their employer to perform professional duties requiring teacher qualifications; 

(d) persons who become members of the Union prior to the date referred to in sub-rule 5(12) pursuant to 

paragraphs 5(3)(d)or5(4)(d): 

provtded that persons who arc cntitl<!d to retain membership pursuant to this sub-rule should not be entitled 
to retain membership after the expiration of the secondment or appointment. 

(2) 1\ member who becomes ineligible for membership of the Union shall within seven days thereof give written 
notice of the facr and the reason therefore to the Secretary of the Branch to which he/she is attached. 

(3) .A. member may resign from the Union by written notice addressed to and delivered to the Secretary of the 
Branch to which the member is attached. 

(4) A notice of resignation from membership takes effect: 

(a) where the member cca.ses to be eligible to become a member of the Union-

(i) on the day on which the notice is recetved at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary; or 

(ii) on the day specified in the notice, which is a day not earlier than d1c day when the member 
ceases to be eligible to become a member; which is later; or 

(b) in any other case-

(i) at the end of 2 WPeks after the notice ts received at the office of the relevant Branch 
Secretary; or 

(i.i) on the day specified in the notice; whichever is later. 

3 



AUSTiu\LIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

OPERATING REPORT 

Rig hts o f members to resign (continued) 

(5) Any subscriptions, levies or fines which arc due and payable but have not been paid by a 
former member in relation to a period before the member's resignation took effect, may be sued for and 
recovered in the name of the Union. in a court of competent juriscliction, as a debt due to the Union. 

(6) A notice delivered to the relevant Branch Secretary shall be taken to have been received by the Union when 
it was delivered. 

(7) A notice of resignation that has been received at the office of the relevant Branch Secretary is nor invalid 
because it was not addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule (1 ). 

(8) A resignation from membership is valid even if it is not affected in accordance with this section if the 
member is informed in writing by or on behalf of the Union that the resignation has been accepted. 

(9) A relevant Branch Secretary may accept a resignation from membership which is not effected in accordance 
with this Rule. 

(1 0) Where the relevant Branch Secretary accepts a resignation in accordance with the previous sub-rule the 
relevant Branch Secretary shall inform the member in writing that his/her resignation has been accepted. 

(11) On receipt of a written notice from a member that he/ she has become ineligible for membership of the 
Union or a notice of resignation or on acceptance of a resignation which is no t effected in accordance with 
this Rule, the Branch Secretary shall, as soon as possible notify the Federal Secretary that the member has 
become ineligible for membership or that the member has resigned." 

Officers or members who are superannuation fund trustee(s) (include position details) or director of a 
company that is a superannuation fund trustee 

No officer or member of the organisation holds a position as a trustee or 
superannuation entity or exempt public sector superannuation scheme where 
for holding such position is that they are an officer or member of an organisation. 

Number of members 

The number of financial members at 31 December 2016 was 59,820 (2015: 58,591) 

Number of employees 

T he number of employees at 31 D ecember 2016 was 155 (2015: 154) 

director of a 
the criterion 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACilERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

OPERATING REPORT 

Names of Committee of Management members and period positions held during the financial year 

a) Office H o lders 

The name;; of the people who held positions as Officers during the year arc: 

John Otxon 

Rod J3rown 

Maxine Sharkey 

l\lichelle H.osicky 

Davtd \X'ynne 
Maurie Mulheron 

Gary Zadkovtch 

Joan Lemaire 

Branch Secretary 

Deput)' Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 
Branch Prestdent 

Branch Deputy President 

Branch Senior Vice-President 

The names of the people who held positions as Execmive and their dare of appointment during the year are: 

Maune Mulheron Branch President October 2015 

Cary Zadkovich Branch Deput')' President October 2015 

Joan Lemaire Branch Senior Vice-Prc~idcm October 2015 

Denis Fttzgerald Branch Vice Presidem february 2016 

T1m Mulroy Branch Vice President February 2016 

Gemma Ackroyd Branch Vice President February 2016 

Geoff Turnbull Branch Vice President L·ebn1ary 2016 

Dianne Byer$ Branch Custodian February 2016 

Margaret Vos Branch Cuswdian February 2016 

Russell Honnery ATST Member's Roll l:'ebruary 2016 

Namsha Watt Association Representa uve February 2016 

Kyl.ie Dawson Association Rcpn:scnlatlve rebruary 2016 

Jennifer Mace Association Representative February 2016 

Phil von Schoenberg Association Representative february 2016 

Juhe Ross Associa cion Representative February 2016 

Mike Morgan Association Representative f'ebruary 2016 

Kathryn Bellach Aswciation Representative I :ebruary 2016 

Philip Cooke Association Representative February 2016 

Stgnawre of destgnared officer: .. ..................... ~.-~ ..................... ..... ............ ................................. . . 

Nomo •nd ciclo of clo.,gno<ed offiw . .J1Q,.(j~~ .. \1.9..3> ....... .C'0,';,\.9c\&.\Mr. ........... . 

Doted ................... 1\A:\\J . . . . . . . . ................... . 
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AUSTRJ\JJAN EDUCATION UNTON NEW SO UTI I \XIJ\J,ES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

CERTIFICATED BY PRESCRIBED DESIGNATED OFFICER 

Certificate for the period ended 31 December 2016 

I, David Wynne, being the Acting Branch Secretary of the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch certify: 

that the documents lodged herewith are copies of the full financial statement for the Australian 
Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch for the period ended 31 
December 2016 referred to in s.268 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009; and 

that the full financial statement was provided to members of the reporting unit on 4 1\pril 2017; 
and 

that the full report was presented to a meeting of the committee of management of the 
reporting unit on 4 April2017 in accordance with s.266 of the Fair Work (Registered 
Organisations) Act 2009. 

Signature of prescribed designated officer: ..... ~~---~··········. 
, 

Name of prescribed designated officcr: .......... J:!AY.~ .. U ..... \f\.f~L~ ~-~ ......................... .. 

1'itlc of prescribed designated officer: ........ l.??.f:.t/..~Y ... .. r.S ... C..~J6-.~ .. j.?.:'4.b.':::f ........... .. 

Datcd: .... ..................... f+)Y./!.7-- -----------...... ... .............................. .. ............................................... .. 
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AUSTRALI.ru"! EDUCATION UNION NEW SOLJTI I WALFS TEACT fERS FEDERATION l3RJ\NCI1 

CONSOLIDATED STATEl\tlliN'1' OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTI IER COMPR.EllENSTVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDRD 31 DECEl\tfBER 2016 

REVENUE 
Subscriptions: 

- Membersh1p 

- Public Education Fund Lev'Y 

Total Subscriptions 

Capitation fees 

J .evies 

Legal Fee Income 

Grant Income 

Other Income 

Rcnral Income 

Donations 

Interest Received 

Total Other Revenue 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Net gain on acquisition of NSW 'l'cachers Federation 

Share of net profit from associarc 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Fixed Assets 

EXPENSES 
Remuneration - Officers (Includes Tcm1ination 
Paymcms) 

Remuneration - Employees 

Superannuallon C:ontributions 

Payroll Tax and Related Costs 

Annual T .cave Expense 

Long Service L~ave Expense 

Total Remuncrauon and On CoHs 

Capitauon Fees 

Afftliations l·ees 

1\mortisation Expense 

Depreciation Expense 

Donations Paid 

Grants Paid 

Meetings, Conferences and Rclat~d Expenses 

Professional Expenses 

Total of Other TRA Regulations Disclosures 

Note 

3G 

3A 
3B 

3E 

3D 

3C 

24 

3F & 41 &4J 

4A 

4B 
4C 

4F 
4F 
4E 

4E& 15 

4H 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

32,029,250 

1,542,413 

33,571,663 

(178.759) 

10.259 

805,569 

1,351,656 

937,330 

2,926,055 

36,497,718 

{11 4,5432 

1,1 23,292 

14,393,353 

1,990,645 

1,011 ,721 

1,602,428 

573,161 

20,694,600 

2,682,474 
2 13,614 

154,933 

1,498,975 

17.730 

249,410 

1,632,719 

142,143 

6,591,998 

2015 
$ 

10,704,884 

518,502 

11,223,386 

41(j,967 

254,200 

339.250 

267,231 

1,277,648 

12,501,034 

28,080,461 

9,590 

395,514 

5,348,744 

735,164 

371,473 

632,396 

169,304 

7,652,595 

572,237 

53,815 

64,274 

512,646 

4,383 

70,425 

473,620 

185,841 

1,937,241 

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other ComprcherlSlve Income should be read in conjunct.ton with the 
accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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1\USTRALlr\N EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEi\CI £ERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREI IENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECElVlliER 2016 

Other Travel and Related Expenses 
Motor V chicle Expenses 

Financial Expenses 

Provision for Doubtful Debts 

Insurances 

Office Occupancy Expenses 

Repairs and Maintenance 

Stationery and Supplies 

Rentals and Equipment 

Associations Disbursements 

Publicauon Expenses 
I Jbrary Expenses 

Media 

Telephone 

Postage 

Ballot Expenses 

General Expenses 

Teachers Relief Expense 
Consultants Expense/ Speakers Lecture 

Toral Other Administration Expenses 

Finance costs 

Total Administration Expenses 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Profit/ (Loss) Before Income Tax 

Note 

4G 

4D 

Income Tax Expense 2 
PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS 
OF THE ENTITY 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or 
loss. 
J\ctuartal Gain/ (Loss) on Dcfmed Benefit Plans 
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME/ (LOSS) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LOSS) 

14 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

5 $ 

736,305 192,509 

266,362 76,977 

263,319 70,562 

(100,404) 65,430 

286,000 191,453 

667,035 213,057 

680,756 279,148 

254,523 63,037 

180,863 45,203 

455,625 98,252 

857,042 tl55,780 

65,293 14,751 

1,339,047 51,237 

375,014 120,710 

140,8W 53,610 

5,932 

1,017,465 245,631 

546,813 202,154 

289,667 96,419 

8,321,534 2,541,852 

14,913,532 4,479,093 

35,608,132 12,131,688 

775,044 28,459,397 

174,_679 18,780 

949,723 28,478,177 

2,243,878 

2,243,878 

3,193,601 28,478,177 

The abO\'e Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanyiug notes to the financial statcmcnts. 
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AUST.IW..,lAN EDUCATION U~TON NEW SO UTI I WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

CO~SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 

Note 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash ancl Cash Equivalents 

Trade and Other Receivables 

Financial Assets 

Current Tax Assets 

Other Current Assets 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

NON CURRENT ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Deferred Tax Assets 

J n tangible Assets 

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and Other Payables 

Shorl-Tcrm Provisions 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Deferred Tax T .iabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Long Term Provisions 

Retirement Benefit Obligations 

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

N ET ASSETS 

E Q UITY 
General J."und 

Special Reserve 1984 Annual Conference 

Public Education Fund 

Retained earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

SA 
SB 
6 
11 

7 

6 

8 

11 

9 

10 
13 

11 

12 

13 
14 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

4,176,646 

802,755 

27,135,566 

569,542 

32,684,509 

3,1 17,446 

24,780,764 

825 

212,026 

28,1 11,061 

60,795,570 

2,723,593 

7,548,847 

10,272,440 

60,684 

12,440 

18,770,972 

18,844,0% 

29,116,536 

31,679,034 

9,399,288 

17,573,000 

4,706,746 

31,679,034 

2015 
$ 

4,715,999 

1,188,549 

26,837,769 

1,282,979 

34,025,296 

136,160 

25,376,111 

81,024 

212,443 

25,805,739 

59,831,035 

2,491,331 

7,479,588 

9,970,919 

334,179 

6,940 

21,033,564 

21,374,683 

31,345,602 

28,485,433 

6,103,767 

18,009,000 

4,372,666 

28,485,433 

The above Statement of Financial Posirjon should he read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial 
statements. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDLJCATION UNIO~ NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF Cl!N'\JGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE)..ffi£R 2016 

General Fund 

s 
CONSOLIDATED 

Balance at 1 January 2015 

Total Comprehensive gain for the Year 
Transfers to and from Reserves 
-Special Reserve 1984 Annual Conference 

- General Fund 6,103,767 

- Public Education Fund 

Balance at 31 December 2015 6,103,767 

Total Comprehensive gain for the Year 3,193,601 

Transfers to and from Reserves 

-Special Reserve 1984 Annual Conference 436,000 

- General Fund 
- Public Education Fund (334,080} 
Balance at 31 December 2016 9,399,288 

Special Reserve Public 
1984 Education 

Conference Fund 

$ s 

18,009,000 

4,372,666 

18,009,000 4,372,666 

(436,000) 

334,080 
17,573,000 4,706,746 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the fmancial statements. 

Retained 
earnings 

Total 

$ $ 

7,256 7,256 

28,478,177 28,478,177 

(18,009,000) 

(6,103,767) 

(4,372,666} 

28,485,433 

3,193,601 

31,679,034 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NE\X' SOUTH WALES TEACIIERS FEDERATIO BRAl'\'Cfl 

CONSOLIDATED STATEl\t!EKT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE.MRER 2016 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Members 

Rece1prs from Other 

Paymcn ts to Suppliers and Employees 

Interest Received 

Income T ax Payments 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 
Net cash from acquisition 

Payment for Financial Assets 

Payment for Property, Plant and Equipment 

Payment for Intangible Assets 
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

Repayment of Borrowings 

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities 

Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Cash Held 

Cash at the Beginning of the Year 

Cash at the End of the Year 

Note 

18(b) 

24 

18(a) 

CONSOLIDATED 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

33,502,511 13,091,241 

2,103,570 1,010,417 

(32,489,112) (12,722,407) 

842,614 116,553 

(28,448} 600 

3.931.135 1,496,404 

3,364,865 

(3,302,822) 30,390 

(1,793,567) (284,230) 

(1 54,517) (3,195) 

780,418 105,909 

(4,470,488) 3,213,739 

(539.353) 4,7 10 ,143 

4,715,999 5,856 

4,176,646 4,715,999 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes lo the financial 
statements. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

RECOVERY OF WAGES ACTIVITY 
FOR'fHF. FTNANCT/\J. YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

Cash assets in respect of recovered money at 
beginning of year 

Receipts 
Amounts recovered from employers in respect of 
wages etc. 

Interest received on recovered money 

Total receipts 

Payments 
Deductions of amounts due in respect of 
membership for: 

12 months or less 

Greater than 12 months 
Deductions of donations or other contributions to 
accounts or funds of: 

Name of other reporting unit of the organisation: 
i\usLralian Education Union 

Deductions of fees or reimbursement of expenses 
Payments to workers in respect of recovered 
money 
Total payments 

Cash assets in respect of recovered money at 
end ofycar 

Number of workers to which the motti.es 
recovered relates 

Aggregate payables to workers attributable to 
recovered monies but not yet distributed 

Payable balance 

Number of workers the payable relates to 

Fund or account operated for recovery of 
wages 

CONSOLIDATED 

2016 
$ 

2015 

$ 

49,155 

49,155 

49,155 
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1\USTiv\Ll!\N EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTfi WALF.S TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCII 

NOTES TO '1'1 IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR TT fE PlNANCIJ\L YEJ\R ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements arc general purpose financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Srandards Board 
(AASB) that apply tor the reportmg period and the Fair Work (Registered Organisation) Act 2009. For the 
purpose of preparing the general purpose financial statements, the Australian Education Union New South \Vales 
Teachers l'ederation Branch is a not-for-profit entity. 

The financial ~tatemenls have been prepared on an accmal basis and m accordance wtth the historical cost, except 
for certain assets and liabilities measured ar fair value, as explained in the accounting policie1' below. llisroncal 
cost is generally bas<.:J on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. Except where stated, no 
allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or rhe fmancial position. The finaucial 
statements arc presented in i\ustrauan dollars. 

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the consolidated entity in the 
preparation o f the financtal report. The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied, unless 
orhcrw1se stated. 

a) Basis of Preparation 

Reportinj, Bcw.r and Com1ention.r 

The financial statements arc general purpose financial statements and have been prepared in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and lntcrprctauons issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Uoard 
(i\1\SB) tha t apply for the reporting period and the i'alt Work (Registered Orgamsation) Act 2009. For the 
purpose of preparing the general purpose fmancial statements, the Australian Education Union New South 
Wales Teacher~ I·cderation Branch is a not-for-profit t·ntHy. 

The financial reporr has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the 
tc'\'aluation of selected non current assets, and financial assets and fmancialliabilities for which the fair value 
basi;; of accounr.ing has been applied. 

\XIhcn rcgutrcd by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in 
presentauon for the current financial year. 

No accounting standard has been adopted earlier than the application date stated in the standard. 

New and revised standards that arc effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 

A number of new and revised standards became effective for the first time to annual periods beginning on or 
after I January 2015. Tnfmmation on the more significant ~tandard(s) is presented below. 
AASB 201-1 I /\mcndmcnts to Australian Accounting Standards (Part A: Annual Improvements 2010- 2012 
and 2011- 2013 Cycles) 
Part A of J\J\SB 2014-1 makes amendments to varions Australian Accounting Standards arising from the 
issuance by the IASB of lnrcrnationall'inancial Reporting Standards Annual Improvements to IJiRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle and Annual Improvemems to IFRSs 2011 2013 Cycle. 
Among oth~r improvements, the amendments arising from Annual Improvements to lFRSs 2010-2012 
Cycle: 
• clar1fy that the definition of a <related party' includes a management entity rhat provtdes key management 
personnel serv1ces to the reporting entity (either dtrectly or through a group enaty) 
• amend 1\ ASB 8 Operating Segments to explicitly require the disclosure of judgements made by 
management in applying the aggregation criteria 
Among other improvements, the amendment~ arising from Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011 - 2013 
Cycle clarify that an entity should assess whcthcr an acquired property is an investment property under 
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i\ USTRALIA.'J EDUCATION UNION ~I ~W SO UTI 1 WALES TEACI IERS FEDERATION BRANCJ l 

NOTES TO T J fE FIN ANCIAJ, STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

AASB 140 Investment Property and perform a separate assessment under AASB 3 Business Combinations 
to determine whether the acquisition of the investment property constitutes a business combination. 
Part A of AASB 2014-'1 is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 
The adoption of these amendments has not had a material impact on the Group as they arc largely of the 

nature of clarification of existing requirements. 

b) Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the fmancial statements of the Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch and entities controlled by the Australian Education Union 
New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Australian 
Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 
from its involvement \V-ith the in vestee and has the ability to affect those reh1rns through its power over the 
Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch. 

Specifically, the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch controls an 
in vestee if and only if the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch has: 

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant 
activities of the in vestee) 
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the inveslee 
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its rerurns 

When the Australian Education Lnion New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch has less than a 
majority of the voting or similar rights of an inve3tee, the Australian Education Union New South Wales 
'J 'cachcrs Federation Branch consider~ all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power 
over an in vestee, including: 

Relevant activities of the investee and who has control over them 
Existing or future administrative or starutory arrangements that may give rise to rights/ control (or 
change the previous control assessment) 
\.Vhether rights are substantive or protective in nature and whether rights presently exercisable or will 
be exercisable when decisions about relevant activities arc being made 
Exposure or rights to financial and non-financial returns (direct or indirect) and the ability to influence 
those returns 
\V'hether the investor is exercising its decision-making abilities as a principal or agent 
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

The Australian Education Union New South \XIales Teachers Federation Branch re-assesses whether or not 
it control:> an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there arc changes to one or more of the three 
clements of controL Consolldation of a subsidiary begins when the 1\ustralian Education Cnion New South 
Wales Teachers fiederation Branch obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Australian 
Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch loses control of the subsidiary. 

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year arc included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the date the Australian Education Union New South \Xfalcs 
Teachers Federation Branch gains control until the date the Australian Education Cnion New South \Vales 
Teachers Federation Branch ceases to control the subsidiary. 

T nco me and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year arc included in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of 
disposal, as appropriate. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNIO)J NEW SOUTH WALES TEAClJERS l,.EIJERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TIIE FINA.."lCW, STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FlNr\.)JCIAL YEl\R ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch and to the non-controlling 
in terests even if this results in the non-controlling intcrc~ts having a deficit balance. 

\XIherc necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting 
policies into line with those used by the i\ustralian Education Union New South Wales Teachers federation 
Branch. 

All in tra-group transactions, balances, mcomc and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

Changes in the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch ownership 
intere~ts in subsidiaries (hat do not result in the Australian Education Union ~ew South Wales Teachers 
!·edcrauon Branch losing control arc accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the 
t\ustralian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch interests and the non-contro lling 
mterests are adjusted to reflect me changes in theu relauve interests m me subsidtaries. Any difference 
between the amount by whtch the non-controlling 111terests are adjusLed and the [au value of the 
constderation paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Australian 
Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch. 

When the Australian Education Union New South \Vales Teachers Federation Branch loses conrrol of a 
subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the 
aggregate of tbe fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the 
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the substcliary and any non­
controlling interests. W'hen as~ets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounrs or fair values and the 
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised tn other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
cgwty, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehenstve income and accumulated in equity are 
accounted for as if me Australian EducatJon Uruon New South Wales Teachers Federation Uranch had 
directly disposed of (he rclevam assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained 
earnings as specified by app!Jcable Standards). 'lbe fair value of any investment retained in the former 
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initi;~l recognition for subscgucnr 
accounting under 1\ 1\SB 139 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' or, when applicable, the 
cost on initial recognition of an investment m an associate or jo1ntly controlled entity. 

c) Acquisition of NSW Teachers Federation and resubmission of financial report 

On 13th /\ugust 2015 Australian r.ducation Union (NSW Branch) acquired the assets and liabilities of New 
South Wales Teachers l 'ederation for no consideration. New South \'Vales Teachers Federation was 
sub~equenlly deregistered pursuant to the NSW Indu~trial Relations Act 1996. Australian Education Union 
(NSW Branch) was then renamed Australian Education Union New South \'(!ales Teachers Pcdcration 
Branch. 

It was deemed that AASB 3 'Business Combinations' would not be applied to the above transaction and a 
pooling of interest methodology would be applied. This methodology sets out the acquisition of aU assets 
and liabilities at book value at the time of acquisition as set out in Note 24. As there was no purchase pnce 
the surplus of the ner assets b;~s been reflected as a gatn within me statement of profit and loss. 

15 



AUSTRALIA.i"l EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTII WALES TEAC:I lERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR E0JDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

d) Property PJant and Equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 

Property 

Freehold land and buildings are measured at cost, less depreciation for buildings and impairment losses. 

Strata title property is measured at cost, less depreciation and impairment losses. 

Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. 

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Executives to ensure it is 
not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis 
of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal. 
The expected net cash flows are discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

Discount factors arc determined individually for each cash generating unit and reflect management's 
assessment of respective risk proftles, such as market and asset specific risk factors. \Vhere the future 
economic benefits of an asset are not primarily dependant on the assets ability to generate net cash inflows 
and where the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future economic benefits, value in 
use is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets including building, but excluding freehold land, is depreciated on 
either straight-line or reducing balance basis over their useful lives to the Federation from the time the asset 
is held ready for use. 'l11e depreciation rates used for each class of asset arc: 

Class of Fixed Asset 
l'teehold land 
Buildings 
Leasehold Improvements 
Plant and Equipment 
Office Equipment 
Computer Equipment 
Motor V chicles 
Strata Plan -Buildings 
Art Work 

c) Intang ibles 

GoodwiU 

Depreciation Rate 
Nil% 
2.5% 
20% 
10% 
10-25% 
40% 
25% 
2.5% 
1% 

Goodwill and goodwill on consolidation arc initially recorded at the amount by which the purchase price for 
a business or for an ownership interest in a controlled entity exceeds the fair value attributed to its net 
tangible assets at date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TI IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR Tf IE FINANCIAL YEAJl ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Software 

Software is measured on the cosl basis less amortisation and imp:tirment losses. 

The carrying amount of software is reviewed annually by the Executives to ensure it is not in excess of the 
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net 
cash flows that will be received from the assets employment and subset1uent disposal. The expected net cash 
flows arc discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 

Class of I ntangiblc t\ssct Amortisation Rate 

Software 40% 

Amortis:11ion 

The amortisable amount of software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life to the Group 
from the time the asset is hdd ready for use. 

t) Employee Benefits 

Provision is made for the entity's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees 
to balance date. Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year together with benefits arising 
from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave which will be settled after one year, have been measured 
at their nominal amount. Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. 

Defined Ber1efit Plans 

Under the Group's defined benefit plans, the amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on 
retirement is defined by reference to the employee's length of service and final salary. The legal obligation 
for any benefits remains with' the Group, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been 
set aside. Plan assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund as well as 
qualifying insurance policies. 

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position for deftned benefit plans is the present value of 
the Defined .Benefit Obligation ('DBO') at the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets. 
Management estimates the DUO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. This is based on 
standard rates of inflation. salary growth and mortality. Discount rates are determined by reference to 
market yields at the end of the reporting periods on government bonds that have terms to maturity 
approximating to the terms of the related pension liability. 

Re-measuremcnt gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions 
arc recognised directly in other comprehensive income. They arc included as a separate component of equity 
in the statement of financial position and in the statement of changes in equity. 
Service cost on the net defined benefit liability is included in employee benefits expense. Net interest 
expense on the net defined benefit liability is included in finance costs. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NE\'<' SOUTH \X' ALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRA C£ I 

NOTES TO Tf IE FIN ANCJ AL ST ATEl'v!ENTS 
FOR THF FINANCIAL YEAR F.NDED 31 DF.CF.l'vffiF.R 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

g) Income Tax 

No provision for income tax is necessary for the Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch (parent entity). as it is exempt from tax under Sec 23(Q of the Income Tax Assessment 
Act. 

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit for rhe year adjusted for any non assessable 
or disallowablc item~. It ls calculatccl us1ng the tax rates that have been enacted or arc substantially enacted at 
balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax for the consolidated entity is accounted for using the :;tatemcnt of financial position liability 
method in respect of temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities ancl their 
carrying amount:; in the financial statements. No deferred rncome tax will be recogrused from the mitial 
recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no eff<·ct on accounting 
or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that arc expected to apply to the period when the asset is rcaliscJ or 
liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the income statement except where it relates to items that may 
be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity. 

Deferred income tax assets arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that future rax profits will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the 
assumption that no adverse change will occur m income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the 
consolidated entity will derive sufficient future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and 
comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the Jaw. 

h) Financial Ins truments 

Rccognitio11 

Financial instruments arc initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when the 
re>lated contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are 
measured as set out below. During the year certain financial assets have been appropriately classified as 
amoruscd cost which represents the investment strategy for these assets. The reclassification is not material 
and comparatives have been adjusted to reflect this change. 

Loans and R eceivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivauvc financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active marker and arc Hated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

H eld to Matun"ty Investments 

These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the entity's intention to hold these investments to marurity. 
Any held to maturity investments arc stated at amortised costs using the effective interest rate method. 
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ACSTRAUAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH \XI ALES TEACHERS fEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TJIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

A vaifablc-for-Sale Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale financial assets include any financial assets other than those included in the above 

categories or those ar fair value through profit and loss. Available-for-sale financial assets arc reflected at fair 
value, except where they do not have a quoted market price in an active market, in which case they are 
carried at cost. 

Financial Liabilidcs 

NotHkrivative ftnanciall.iabilities arc recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal 
payments and amortisation. 

Impairment 

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
instmment has been impaired. In the case of available-for sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in 
the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether impairment has arisen. Impairment losses arc 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. 

i) Impairment of Assets 

At each reporting date, the entity reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in usc, is 
compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is 
expensed to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

T mpainnent resting is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. 
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the consolidated entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

j) Revenue Recognition 

Membership subscription revenue is recognised in the financial period to which the membership applies. 
fvfcmbership revenue received in advance is recognised as a liabiJity at balance date. 

Legal fcc revenue is recognised when the service is rendered and the time is incurred. Unbilled revenue is 
recognised as an asset termed "work in progress" which is included within other current assets. Provision is 
made against work in progress balances to the extent that they arc not considered to be recoverable. 

Rental income is recognised upon the l'cdcration's right to receive the income in accordance with the lease 
contract. 

Donation income is recognised upon the receipt of funds. 

Interest it1come is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the applicable interest rates on the 
financial assets. 

Capitation fees and levies arc recognised on an accrual basis and recorded as a revenue and/ or expense in 
the year to which it relates. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S'fATEMENTS 
FOR TILE HNANCIAL YEAR El\DED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

k) Goods and Services Tax 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivab\es and payablcs in 
the statement of financial position arc shown inclusive of GST. 

Cash flows arc presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of 
investing and fmancing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows. 

I) Financial Risk management objectives and policies 

The consolidated entity's principal fmancial instrument comprises receivables, payables and bank loans, cash 
and short term deposits. 

The consolidated. entit-y manages its exposure to key financial risks including interest rate in accordance with 
the consolidated entit-y's financial risk management policy. The objective of the policy is to support the 
delivery of the consolidated entity's financial targets whilst protecting future financial security. 

m) Risk Exposure and Responses 

The main risks arising from the consolidated entity's financial instruments arc interest rate risk, credit risk 
and liquidity risk. '11le Consolidated entity uses different methods of measure and manages different types of 
risks to which it is exposed. These include monitoring levels of exposure to interest rate and assessments of 
market forecasts for interest rate prices. Ageing analysis and monitoring of specific credit allowances arc 
undertaken to manage credit risk, Liquidity risk is monitored through the development of future rolling cash 
How forecasts. 

Interest rate risk 

The consolidated entity's exposure to market interest rates relates primarily to the consolidated entity's 
investments. The level of investment is disclosed in Note 19(c). 

n) Future Change in Accounting Standards 

The A.ASB has issued new, revised and amended standards and interpretations that have mandatory 
application dates for future reporting periods. Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch has considered all pending Australian Accounting Standards issued up to the current 
reporting date and believe that they have no significant impact on the financial statements. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUC-\TION UNION NEW SOU1ll WALES TEACHERS l•EDERAT!ON BRANCH 

)JQTES TO THE FINAl.'\!CI.'\1. STATEMEl\:TS 
FOR TT fE FINANCL'\L YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

o) Critical Accounting estimates and judgements 

The Executive evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based 
on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable 
expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data. obtained both 
externally and within the consolidated entity. 

Key esttmates 

impairment 

The consolidated entity assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of 
conditions and events spcctfic to the consolidated enury that may be indicative of impairment triggers. 

Recoverable amounts and relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculauou~ which incorporatt: 
various key assumptions. 

Kt>y Judgcmen ts 

ProtJJJton.for impairment~( r>.Jceivable..-

No impainnent has been recognised for the total receivables amount outstanding as at balance date. 63% 
of the total balance outstanding of $222,855 as at balance date is 91 days plus past due and is 
predominantly made up of legal cases rccctvablcs, the majority of which arc matters relating to workers 
compensation cases which are fully recoverable on settlement of the matters. 

S uperannualion 

The consolidated entity makes employer contributions to defined benefit schemes that are accounted for 
using methods tl1at rely on acruarial assumptions to estimate costs and liabilities for inclusion in the 
fmancial statements. These actuarial assumptions include discounted rates, assumed rates of return, salary 
increases and mortality rates and arc disclosed in detail within Note 14. 

p) Leases 

Operaung lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative of the pattern of 
l>ene£its derived from the leased assets. 

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease arc added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

q) Cash 

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held 
at call with bank, other short-term highly liquid investments with original marucity of 3 months or less that 
arc readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject withm shorr-rerm borrowings in current 
liabtlities on the consolidated statement of financial position. 

21 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SO UTI I WAJ .ES TEACHERS FEDI•.RA'IlON BRANCH 

NOTES TO TilE FINA."I\YCIAL STATEivlliNTS 
1:0R TI:-IH FI;-.JA..'\JCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECE!viBER 2016 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

r) Fair value measurement 

'J'he Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch measures financial 
tnstrumcnts, such as , financial asset as at fair value through the profit and loss, available for sale financial 
asset~, and non-financial assets such as land and buildings and investment properties, at fair value at each 
balance sheet date. Also, fair values of fmaucial instruments measured at amorused cost arc disclosed in 
Note 16A. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to seU an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
trans:tct.ion between market panicipanrs at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on 
the presumpt.i.on that the transacuoo to sell the asset or transfer rhe liability takes place c1thcr: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must bt~ accesfiible by the Australian Education Union New 
South \XIales Teachers .Federation Uranch. The fai.r value of an asset or a liability is measured tlsing the 
assumptions that market participants would usc when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into accoun t a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best usc or by selling it to another market participant 
that would use the asset in its highest and best usc. 

The Australian Education Union )Jew South Wales Teachers Federation Branch uses valuation techniques 
that arc appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximising the usc of relevant observable inputs and minimising the usc of unobservable inputs. 

1\U assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significam to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

I .evd 1- Quoted (unadjusteu) market prtces in active markets for identical assets or liabiliucs 

Level 2-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3-Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable 

For assets and ltabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, rhe Australtan 
Education Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch dctcrm.ines whether transfers have 
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that 
IS sign1ftcant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

External valuers arc involved for valuat-ion of significant assets, such as land and buildings and investment 
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 
standards are maintained. l'or the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Australian Education Union New 
South Wales Teachers Federation Branch has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERA'l10N BRANCH 

NOTFS TO TI TE rTNANCIAL STJ\TF.l'vfF.NTS 
!·OR THE FINANClAL YEAR ENDED 31 0ECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 2: INCOME TAX EXPENSE 

The prima facie tax on profit/ (loss) before income tax is reconciled to the income tax. as follows: 
Prima facie tax payable on profit/ (loss) before income tax at 30% (2015: 30%) 

For the taxable entity in the Group 
(Profit) / Loss before income tax 

Prima facie tax expense I (income) 
1\ dd: assessable & non-deductible items 
Less: deductible & non-assessable items 
Current year tax expense / (Income) 

Deferred tax assets & liabilities 
(Increase)/ Jecrease in deferred tax assets 
Increase/ ( Jecrease) in Jcferred tax liabilities 

The Applicable Weighted Average 
Effective Tax Rate 

NOTE 3: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION 

Audit of Financial Reports 
'laxation Services 
Other Assurance Services 

NOTE 3A: CAPITATION FEES INCOME 

Capitation fcc,; 

Education International 
ACTC Campaigns 
ACTC Subscriptions 
Public E ducation Campaign 
Total capitation fees 

NOTE 3B: LEVIES INCOME 

.1\EU Levy 1 (Australian Educator) 
1\EU Levy 2 (T J\FE Teacher) 
AEU l 'ederal Election Levy 
Total levies 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
618,373 109,897 

(185,512) (32,969) 
336,246 417,127 

(132,11 7) (402,938} 
18,617 (18,780) 

80,199 5,003 
(273,495) (65,215) 

3o;;, 17% 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
70,900 

1,000 

71,900 

2015 
$ 

81,200 
3,800 
2,500 

87,500 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 

23 



AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATErvffiNTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YF.AR ENDED 31 DECEI'vfBRR 2016 

NOTE 3C: INTEREST INCOME 

Deposits 
Loans 
Total interest 

NOTE 3D: RENTAL INCOME 

Properties 
Other 
Total rent 

NOTE 3E: GRANTS OR DONATIONS INCOME 

Grant 
Donations 
Total grants or donations 

NOTE 3F: NET GAIN FROM SALE OF ASSETS 

Land and Buildings 
Furniture, Fitting and Equipment 
IT Equipment 
Plant and Equipment 
Refutbishmen t 
Motor Vehicle 
Intangibles 
Total net gain from sale of assets 

NOTE 3G: MEMBERSHIP FEE INCOME 

Subscription fees 
Total Membership fee 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
914,308 
23,022 

937,330 

266,259 
972 

267,231 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
1,351,656 

1,351,656 

2015 
$ 

339,250 

339,250 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
10,259 

10,259 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
325,198 

132,082 

457,280 

2015 
$ 

9,590 

9,590 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
32,029,250 10,704,884 
32,029,250 10,704,884 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SO UTI l WALES TEACHERS FEDERATlON BRANCI 1 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR Tllli FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECE.!villER 2016 

NOTE 4: EXPENSE 

NOTE 4A: EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 

Holders of office: 
Wages and salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 
Separation and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 
Subtotal employee expenses holders of office 

Employees other than office holders: 
Wages and salaries 
Superannuation 
Leave and other entitlements 
Separation and redundancies 
Other employee expenses 
Subtotal employee expenses employees other 
than office holders 
Total employee expenses 

NOTE 4B: CAPITATION FEES 

Capitation fees 
Education International 
ACTU Campaigns 
ACTU Subscriptions 
AEU Levy 1 (Australian Educator) 
AEU Levy 2 ( fi\FE Teacher) 
Public Education Campaign 
AEU Federal Election Levy 
Publication Levy (A)- Australian Educator 
Publication Levy (B) - Tl\ FE Teacher 
Public Education Campaign Advertising 
1-'ederal Election Campaign Advertising 
Total capitation fees 

NOTE 4C: AFFILIATION FEES 

NSW Labor Council 
Newcastle Labor Council 
South Coast Labor Council 
Other Affiliates 
Welfare Rights Centre 
Total affiliation fees/ subscription 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
1,123,292 395,514 

174,094 51 ,364 
241,561 58,656 

85,604 25,145 
1,624,551 530,679 

13,636,720 5,348,744 
1,816,551 683,800 
1,934,028 743,044 

756,633 
926,117 346,328 

19,070,049 7,121,916 
20,694,600 7,652,595 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
1,771,670 430,518 

124,849 

338,876 
194,631 

14,640 
237,808 

2,682,474 

29,773 

48,227 
4,174 

59,545 

572,237 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

s $ 
159,608 

6,381 
15,979 
10,838 
20,808 

213,614 

39,116 
2,096 
3,969 
1,698 
6,936 

53,815 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH W AJ,ES TEACI IERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCii\J, YEAR ENDED 31 DECEtvf.BER 2016 

NOTE 4D: ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 

Consideration Lo employers for payroll deductions 
Compulsory levies 
Fces/ aUowances - meeting and conferences 
Conference and meeting expenses 
Contractors I consultants 
Property expenses 
Office expenses 
Informacion communications technology 
Other 
Subtotal administration expense 

Operating lease rentals: 
Minimum lease payments 

Total administration expenses 

NOTE 4E: GRANTS OR DONATIONS 

Grants: 
Total paid that were $1,000 or less 
Total paid that exceed $1,000 
Total grants 

Donations: 
Total paid that were $1,000 or less 
Total paid that exceed $1,000 
Total donations 
Total grants or donations 

NOTE 4F: DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 

Depreciation 
T .and & buildings 

Property, plant and equipment 
Total depreciation 

Amortisation 
Intangibles 

Total amortisation 

Total depreciation and amortisation 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

83,880 
16,797 

1,632,719 
289,667 

1,719,901 
1,023,425 
2,264,025 
7,740,846 

14,771,260 

142,272 
14,913,532 

2015 
$ 

19,585 
2,331 

473,620 
95,388 

611,117 
309,304 
362,790 

2,558,767 
4,432,902 

46,191 
4,479,093 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
3,410 9,925 

246,000 60,500 
249,410 70,425 

3,117 
14,613 
17,730 

267,140 

4,383 

4,383 
74,808 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

874,072 
624,903 

1,498,975 

154,933 
154,933 

1,653,908 

2015 
$ 

284,103 
228,543 
512,646 

64,274 
64,274 

576,920 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUT1 I WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TI-lE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCii\L YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM13ER2016 

NOTE 4G: FINANCE COSTS 

Finance lease 

Overdrafts/loans 
Unwinding of discount 
Total finance costs 

NOTE 4H: PROFESSIONAL EXPENSES 

Litigation 
Other legal matters 
Non legal professional fees 
Total leg al costs 

NOTE 4!: WRITE-DOWN AND IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

1\sset write-do\.vns and impairments of: 
Land and buildings 
Furniture, Fitting and Equipment 
IT Equipment 
Plant and Equipment 
Refurbishment 

Total write-down and impairment of asse ts 

NOTE 4J: N ET LOSSES FROM SALE OF ASSETS 

Land and Building 
Furniture, Fitting and Equipment 
IT Equipment 
Plant ami Eyuipmenl 
Refurbishment 
Motor V chicle 
T otal net losses from asset sales 

NOTE 4K: OTHER EXPENSES 

Penalties - via RO Act or RO Regulations 
Total other expenses 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

35,760 
106,383 
142,143 

2015 
$ 

122,595 
63,246 

185,841 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

31,520 
12,184 

520 
25,160 

502,439 
571,823 

2015 
$ 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTil WALES TEi\CHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TI IE FINANCIAL STATE:YlENTS 
!·OR Tl IE FIN.r\.NCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEY!BER 2016 

NOTE 5 CURRENT ASSETS 

NOTE SA: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash at Bank 
Cash at I land 

NOTE SB: TRADE AND OTHER RECEJV ABLES 

Receivables from other reporting units 
Australian Education Union 

Total receivables from other reporting units 

Less provision for doubtful debts 
Austxalian Education Union 
Total provision for doubtful debts 

Receivable from other reporting units (net) 

Other receivables: 
GST receivable from the Australian Taxation 
Office 
Other trade receivables 

Total dther receivables 

T o tal trade and other receivables (net) 

Current Assets - Trade and Other Receivables 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
4,173,996 

2,650 
4,176,646 

4,702,590 
13,409 

4,715,999 

CONSOLIDATE D 
2016 

$ 

3,521 

3,521 

3,521 

1,689 
797,545 

799,234 

802,755 

2015 
$ 

13,598 

13,598 

13,598 

16,285 
1,172,264 

_!_.188!549 

1 '188,549 

a) As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 

+91 Days 
Total 0-30 Days 31-60 Davs 61-90 Davs PDNI* 

$ $ $ s $ 
2016 Consolidated 222,855 27,627 31,604 24,007 139,617 
2015 Consolidated 503,416 107,176 67,706 27,473 301,061 

'* Past due not tmpaired 
Receivables past due but not considered impaired are: Consolidated $139,617 (2015 $301,061). Receivables th3[ are 
past due are assessed for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for where there arc 
specific circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the Group. Payment terms on these 
amounts have not been re-negotiated. 

Other balances within trade and other receivable~ do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. It is 
expected that those other balances will be received when due. 
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1\USTR.AIJAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
l'OR TilE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 5B: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

b) Related Party Receivables 

For related party receivables refer to N ote 16(b). 

NOTE 6: FINANCIAL ASSETS 

CURRENT 

Interest Bearing Deposits( At amortised cost) 
- General Purpose 
- Public Education Fund 
- Annual Leave 
- I -ong Service Leave 
- 2.5'Yo Subscriptions 

NONCURRENT 

Interest Bearing Deposits( At amortised cost) 
- 2.5% Subscriptions 
-T.oag Senrice Leave 
-Public Education Fund 
Share~ in TUC Wollongong, at deemed cost 
Shop 1 & 2 "l 'crm Deposit 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
3,000,000 
2,844,11 6 
2,356,833 
3,256,451 

15,678,166 
27,135,566 

2015 
$ 

2,779,991 
2,284,860 
3,175,692 

18,597,226 
26,837,769 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

3,000,000 

109,446 
8,000 

3,117,446 

128,160 
8,000 

136,160 

The amounts set aside for Annual Leave and Long Service Leave are funds to offset the liability 
and not amounts due for excess leave taken. 

NOTE 7: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Unbilled Revenue at Recoverable Amount 
Prepayments 
Other 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
202,281 805,560 
358,806 470,060 

8,455 7,359 -------'---
569,542 1,282,979 
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AUS1l~Al.IAN EDUC:t\.l10N UNlO'\J NL•.W SOUTH Wl\LES TEACf-fERS foEDERt\TTON BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR E~ED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

The increase in property, plant and equipment is attributed to the acquisition of NSW Teachers Federation 
during the prior year. Refer ro Note 1 (c) and Note 24 for further details regarding the acquisition. 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

Properties 

Suite 11, 13-17 Kildare Road, Black town (At Cost) 391,767 
Less: Accumulated Deprectation {187,352} 

204,415 

39 Carrington Street, Lismore (At Cost) 383,809 383,809 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {91,779} {82,185} 

292,030 301,624 

Lot 10 & 11/1 llopetoun Street, Charlestown 
(At Cost) 728,270 728,270 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation __jl ll ,734) (93,5~ 

616,536 634,742 

Strata Plan 77140, Surry Hills, Lot 2 (At Cost) 
Land 3,768,988 3,768,988 
Building 2,336,605 2,336,605 
Less: 1\ccumulated Depreciation {2,476,137~ {2,323,497} 

3,629,456 3,782,096 

Strata Plan 77140, Surry I !.ills, Lot 4 (At Cost) 
Land 7,666,453 7,666,453 
Building 18,984,746 19,034,182 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation {12,205,6622 {11 ,534,5892 

14,445,537 15,166,046 

Total Book Value of Property 18,983,559 20,088,923 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 8: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Plant and Equipment 
Furniture, l"ittings and Equipment (At Cost) 
Les~: AccumulaLed Depreciation 

Plant and Equipment (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Refurbishment (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Leasehold Improvements (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Computer Installations (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Motor Vehicles (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Art Work (At Cost) 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Book Value of Plant and Equipment 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 

a) Movement in Carrying Amounts 

Property 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
Balance at the Beginning of 
Year 20,088,923 
Additions 2,232 20,373,026 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ s 

2,5R2,482 
(2,013,296) 

569,186 

1,027,167 
(833,853) 

193,314 

5,213,854 
(906,751) 
4,307,103 

114,135 
(90,131) 

24,004 

2,884,125 
(2,820,902) 

63.223 

1,036,741 
(430,666) 

606,075 

36,308 
(2,009) 
34,299 

5,797,205 

24,780,764 

CONSOLIDATED 
Plant and Equipment 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

5,287,188 
1,791,335 5,570,915 

2,497,629 
(1,926,874) 

570,755 

995,604 
(812,264) 

183,340 

4,732,484 
(886,479) 

3,846,005 

114,135 
(83,887) 

30,248 

2,841,833 
(2,736,417) 

105,416 

1,087,817 
(571,055) 

516,762 

36,308 
(1,646) 
34,662 

5,287,188 

25,376,111 

Total 
2016 

$ 

Disposals (443,435) - (1,202,335) (61,774) 

25,376,111 
1,793,567 

(1,645,770) 
(743,144) Depreciation (664,161) (284,103) (78,983) (221,953) 

Carrying Amount at End of 
Year 18,983,559 20,088,923 5,797,205 5,287,188 24,780,764 

2015 
$ 

25,943,941 
(61,774) 

(506,056) 

25,376,111 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCA'I10N UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS l'EDERATfON BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S'l'ATE::VfF.NTS 
FOR TJ IE l'INANClAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 9: INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

The increase in intangible assets is attributed to the acquisition of NSW Teachers Feder:-1tion during the year. 
Refer to Note 1 (c) and Note 24 for further details regarding the acquisition. 

a) 

Software 
Less: Accumulated Amortisation 

Movement in Carrying Amounts 
Balance at the Beginning of Year 
Additions 
Amortisation 

Carrying Amount at End of Year 

NOTE 10: CURRENT LIABILIES 

NOTE lOA: TRADE PAYABLES 

Trade creditors and accruals 
Operating lease rentals 

Subtotal trade creditors 

Payables to other reporting units 
Australian Education Union 

Subtotal payables to other reporting units 

Total trade payables 
Settlement is usually made within 30 days 

NOTE lOB: OTHER PAY ABLES 

Other payables 
Consideration to employers for payroll deductions 
Legal costs 
Prepayments received/unearned revenue 

Total other payables 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
2,256,032 

(2,044,006) 
212,026 

212,443 
154,516 

(154,933) 
212,026 

2,101,51 6 
(1,889,073) 

212,443 

276,717 
(64,274) 
212,443 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
2,112,706 1,650,736 

2,112,706 1,650,736 

2,112,706 1,650,736 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

610,887 

610,887 

2015 
$ 

840,595 
840,595 
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i\USTRAUAN EDUCATION UNlON NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS fEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TI IE FINANCIAL STA'l'EMENTS 
E'OR TilE PINAL'\'CIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTEll: TAX 

CURRENT 

a) Assets 
Current Tax Asset 

b) Liabilities 
Deferred Tax Liability Comprise: 
Temporary Differences 

NONCURRENT 

c) Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets Comprise: 
Temporary Differences 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 
2015 

$ 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

60,684 334,179 
60,684 334,179 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

825 
825 

2015 
$ 

81,024 
81,024 

The movement in deferred tax assets and deferred· tax liabilities relates to Federation Law Pty Ltd and 
has been expensed through the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The major 
source of deferred tax assets is provision for annual leave and long service leave, while Work in Progress 
represents the major source of deferred tax liability. 

NOTE 12: FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

CURRENT 
CONSOLIDATED 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

Joint Funding of Courses wi.th Sydney University 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TI IE FINANCIAL STA'fEMENTS 
FOR THE FINA!."\JCW. YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 13: EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS 

Office Holders 
Annual leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 
Subtotal employee provisions -office holders 

Employees other than office holders: 
Annual Leave 
Long service leave 
Separations and redundancies 
Other 
Subtotal employee provisions-employees other 
than office holders 
Total employee provisions 

Current 
Non-Current 
Total employee provisions 

Opening balance 01 January 
Additional provisions 
Amounts used 
Closing Balance at 31 December 

Number of Employees 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
470,954 
902,695 

1,373,649 

2,384,553 
3,785,366 

6,169,919 
7,543,568 

7,531,128 
12,440 

7,543,568 

468,361 
906,774 

1,375,135 

2,341,336 
3,733,284 

6,077,620 
7,452,755 

7,445,815 
6,940 

7,452,755 

Employee benefits 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
7,452,755 
1,803,407 

(1,712,594) 
7.543.568 

2016 
155 

9,084,271 
(1,631.516) 

7,452,755 

2015 
154 
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AUSTRAU AN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUH1 WALES TEACHERS FED!':RATTON BRANCII 

NOTES TO Tf-JF. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE r:INA."JCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEtviBER 20.16 

NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

N aturc of the benefits provided by the fund 

The Pooled l'und holds in trust the investments of the closed NSW public sector superannuation schemes: 

* State Authorities Superannuation Scheme (SASS) 

* State Superannuation Scheme (SSS) 
"' Police Superannuation Scheme (PSS) 
* State Authorities Non-contributory Superannuation Scheme (SANCS). 

"These schemes are all deftned beneftt schemes - at least a component of the ftnal benefit is derived from a 
multiple of member salary and years of membership. Members receive lump ~urn or pension benefits on retirement, 
death, disablement and withdrawaL 

All the Schemes are closed to new members." 

Description of the regulatory framework- Para 139(a)(ii) 

The schemes in the Pooled l'und are established and governed by the following NSW legislation: Superannuation 
Act 1916, State Authorities Superannuation Act 1987, Police Regulation (Superannuation) Act 1906, State 
Authorities Non-Contributory Superannuation Act 1987, and their associated regulations. 

The schemes in the Pooled Fund are exempt public sector superannuation schemes under the Commonwealth 
Superannuation Industry (Supervision) Act 1993 (SIS). The SIS Legislation treatl> exempt public sector 
superannuation funds as complying funds for concessional taxation and superannuation guarantee purposes. 

Under a I leads of Government agreement, the New South Wales Government undertakes to ensure that the 
Pooled Fund will conform with the principles of the Commonwealth's retirement incomes policy relating to 
preservation, vesting and reporting to members and that members' benefits arc adequately protected. 

The New South Wales Government prudentially monitors and audits the Pooled Fund and the Trustee Board 
activities in a manner consistent with the prudential controls of the SIS legislation. These provisions are in addition 
to other legislative obligations on the Trustee Board and internal processes that monitor the Trustee Board's 
adherence to the principles of the Commonwealth's retirement incomes policy. 

An actuarial investigation of the Pooled Fund is performed every three years. The last actuarial investigation was 
performed as at 30 June 2015. The next actuarial investigation will be performed at 30 June 2018. 

Description of other entities' responsibilities for the governance of the fund -Para 139(a)(iii) 

The run d's Trustee is responsible for the governance of the Fund. The Tmstee has a legal obligation to act solely in 
the best interests of fund beneficiaries. The Trustee has the following roles: 

" Administration of tl1e fund and payment to the beneficiaries from fund assets when required in accordance with 
the fund rules; 
* Management and investment of the fund assets; and 
-r. Compliance with other applicable regulations. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION U:--JION NEW SOUTIJ W.A..LES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCII 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR T HE F INANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 D ECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Description of risks - Para 139(b) 

There arc a number of risks to which the Fund exposes the Employer. The more signific-ant ri~ks rela t·ing to the 
defined benefi ts arc: 
.. I nvestment risk- The risk that investment returns will be lower than assumed and the Employer will need to 
increase contributions to offset this shortfall. 
~ Longevity risk- The risk that pensioners live longer than assumed, increasing future pensions. 
4 Pension indexation risk- The risk that pensions will increa~e at a rate greater than assumed, increasing future 
pensions. 
"'Sal:try growth risk- The risk that wages or salaries (on which future benefit amounts for active members will be 
based) will rise more rapidly than assumeJ, increasing defined benefit amounts and thereby requiring additional 
employer contributions. 
·· Legislative risk -The risk is that legislative changes could be made which increase the cost of providing the 
defined benefits. 

The Jefmed benefit fund assets are invested with independent fund managers and have a diversified asset !TUX. 1he 
htnd has no significant concentration of investment risk or liquidity risk. 

Description of sig nificant events- Para 139(c) 

There were no fund amendments, curtailments or settlements during the year. 

Retirement Benefit Obligations 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

2015 

$ 

18,770,972 21 ,033,564 

The benefits provided by this plan arc based on length of service of the member at retirement. 

The amount recognised in rhe statement of fina ncial position is as follows: 

Present Value of defmed benefit obligations at the end of the 
year 
Fair Value of Plans Assets at end of the year 
Net Liability recognised in Statement of Financial Position 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 

62,663,181 
(43,892,209) 

18,770,972 

63,784,725 
(42,751,161) 

21,033,564 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATTON UNION NEW SOUTJI WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINA .. '\JCIAL STATE!vlliNTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Reconciliation of the Net Defined Benefit Liability 

Net Defined Benefit Liability acquired before contribution 
tax assumption change 
Adjustment due to contribu tion tax assumption change 
Net Defined Benefit Liability at acquisition after 
contribution tax assumption change 

Current service cost 
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability 
T>as t service cost 
(Gains)/losses arising from settlements 
Actual return on Fund assets less Interest income 
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions 
Actuarial (gains)/losscs arising from changes in financial 
assumptions 
Actuarial (ga.ins)/losses arising from liability experience 
Adjustment for effect of asset ceiling 
Employer contributions 
Rcmeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities/ (Asset) 
Net Defined Benefit Liability/ (Asset) at end of year 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

18,770,972 

18,770,972 

273,306 
931,197 

(1,152,625) 

(771,149) 
(1,047,475) 

(495,846) 

18,770,972 

2015 

$ 

21,033,564 

21,033,564 

590,788 
974,912 

(369,306) 

(1,479,256) 

1,604,724 

(15,547,937) 
707,340 

(407,000) 
206,156 

21,033,564 

Reconciliation of movement in the liability recognised in the statement of ftnancial position as foUows: 

Present value of de fined benefit oblig ations acquired 
during the year 
Current Service Costs 
Interest Cost 
Contributions by participants 
Actuarial (gains) losses arising from changes in demographic 
assumptions 
Actuarial (gains) losses arising from changes in financial 
assumptions 
Actuarial (gains) losses arising from liability experience 
Benefits paid 
Taxes, premiums & expenses paid 
Past service cost 
Settlements 
Present value of defined benefit obligations at end of the 
year 

63,784,726 
273,306 

2,790,855 
216,025 

(771,149) 
(1,047,475) 
(2,823,733) 

240,627 

62,663,181 

81,346,632 
590,788 

2,156,443 
228,898 

1,604,724 

(15,480,315) 
914,726 

(3,138,310) 
150,871 

(369,306) 
(4,220,425) 

63,784,726 
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AUSTRAIJAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHI·:RS FEDERATION BRANCf-I 

NOTES TO TilE l'INANCIAL STATEMENTS 
f-OR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Reconcilia tion of movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows: 

1:air value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 
J.'air value of plan assets acquired during rhe year 
Interest income 
Actual return on Fund assets less Tnteresl income 
Employer Contributions 
Contribution by Fund Participants 
Benefits paid 
Taxes, premiums & expenses paid 
Settlements 

Fair Value of Fund Assets 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
42,751,161 

1,859,658 
1,152,625 

495,846 
216,025 

(2,823,733) 
240,627 

43,892,209 

46,593,488 
1,181,531 
1,548,108 

407,000 
228,898 

(3, 138,31 0) 
150,871 

(4,2~0,425) 

42,751,161 

1\ll Pooled Fund assets arc invested by SAS Trustee Corporation (STC) at arm's length through independent fund 
managers, assets ate not separately invested for each entity and it is not possible or appropriate to disaggregate and 
attriU\Jte fund assets to individual entities. As such, the disclosures below relate to total assets of the Pooled Fund. 

Asset category Total Quoted prices in Significant Unobservable 
(A$'000) active markets for observable inputs inputs 

identical assets Level 2 (A$'000) Level3 
Levell (A$'000) (A$'000) 

Short Term Securities 2,229,551 1,900,292 329,259 
Australian Fixed Interest 2,166,440 (22,099) 2,188,538 

International Fixed Interest 734,274 28 734,246 
Australian Equities 9,637,534 9,158,485 479,024 24 

T n temational Equities 12,111,060 8,529,666 2,556,169 1,025,225 
Property 3,517,904 926,206 592,386 1,999,311 

.1\lternatives 8,600,716 347,149 4,487,130 3,766,437 
Total 38,997,478 20,839,728 11,366,754 6,790,996 

*Actual asset aUocation as at 31 December 2016 is not yet available, the latest available as at 30 November 2016 
has been used. 

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. The assets in this level arc listed shares; 
listed unit trusts. 
Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices observable for the a~set or liability either directly or indirectly. The assets 
in this level arc cash; notes; government, semi-government and corporate bonds; unlisted trusts where quoted 
prices ate available in active markets for iden tical assets or liabilities. 
Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on observable market data. The assets in this level are 
unlisted property; unlisted shares; unlisted infrastructure; distressed debt; hedge funds. 

Derivatives, including futures and options, can be used by investment managers. I Iowever, each manager's 
investment mandate clearly states that derivatives may only be used to facilitate efficient cash flow management or 
to hedge the portfolio against market movements and cannot be used for speculative purposes or gearing of the 
investment portfolio. As such managers make limited usc of derivatives. 
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AUSTRMJAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRAl'JCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
POR TilE FINANCIAL YRAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBUGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

The percentage invested in each asset class at the reporting date is: 

State Super State Supers 

Short Term Securities 5.7% 7.5% 
Australian Fixed Interest 5.6% 6.7% 

International Fi..'(ed Interest 1.9% 2.1% 
Australian Equities 24.7% 24.0% 

International Equities 31.1% 31.4% 
Property 9.0% 8.7% 

Alternatives 22.1% 19.6% 
Total 100.0'Yo 100.0% 

Fair value of entity's own financial instruments 

The fair value of the Pooled Fund assets as at 31 December 2016 include $103.7 million in NSW government 
bonds. Of the direct properties owned by the Pooled Fund: 

SAS Trustee Corporation occupies part of a property 100% owned by the Pooled Fund with a fair value of $227 
million (31 December 2015:$195 million). 

Health Administration Corporation occupies part of a property 50% owned by the Pooled Fund with a fair value 
(100% interest) of $253 million (31 December 2015: $225 million). 

Significant Actuarial Assumptions at the Reporting Date 

Economic Assumptions 

2016 2015 

Weighted average Weighted average 

Salary increase rate (excluding promotional 
mcreases) 
Rate of CPllncrcasc 
Discount rate 

Asset-Liability matching strategies 

2.7% 
2.2% 
4.5% 

The Trustee monitors its asset-liability risk continuously in setting its investment strategy. It also monitors 
cash flows to manage liquidity requirements. :--lo explicit asset-liability matching strategy is used by the Trustee. 

Funding arrangements 

3.0% 
2.5% 
4.5% 

Funding arrangements are reviewed at least every three years following the release of the triennial actuarial review 
and was last reviewed following completion of the triennial review as at 30 June 2015. Contribution rates are set 
after discussions between the employer, STC and NSW Treasury. 

hmding positions arc reviewed annually and funding arrangements may be adjusted as required after each annual 
revtew. 
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NO'l"RS TO Tl IE FINANCit\J. STATEMENTS 
FOR THE riNA,'\JCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEwiBER 2016 --------------------------------------------------
NOTE 14: RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Expected Contributions 

Expected employer contributions to be paid in the next 
rcporung pcnod 

NOTE 15: GRANTS 

SASS 
2017 

SANCS SSS 
590,000 

Total 
590,000 

CONSOLIDATED 

Enc Pearson !'ravel Grant 
International Fund 
)Jc,v Teacher Scholarsh1ps 
Sam J .c\\1:; Memonal 
Spomorsh1ps - Refugee Week 
Sponsorships - Public Education fo'oundation Awards \.eremony 
Trc:c Levy 

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION 

a) Office Holders 

2016 
s 

160,000 
'i6,000 
1,410 
5,000 

25,000 
2,000 

249,410 

The names of the people who held positions as Officers durmg the year are: 

John D1xon 

Rod Brown 

Ivlaxmt· Sharkey 

Michelle Rosicky 

Davu.l Wynne 

Ivf:lunc l\{ulheron 

Gan Zadltov1ch 

Jo:tn Lematrc 

Branch St·crctary 

Dcpury Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

D eputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Rr~nch Pres1dcnt 

Branch Deputy Pre:ndem 

Branch Scruor Vice-Presidcnr 

2015 
$ 

23,000 
37,500 

1,925 

8,000 
70,425 
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NOTES TO Tl IE FIN ANCI A.L STAT!iMENTS 
FOR THE FINA ... "JCIAL YEAR F.NDED 31 DECElvlBER 2016 

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

The names of rhe people who held positions as Branch Executive during the year are: 

Maurie t\fulhcron 

Gary Zadkovich 

luau Lema1rc 

Denis Firzgt>rald 

Tim Mulroy 

Gemma 1\ckroyd 

Geoff 'l 'urnbull 

Dianne Bycr~ 

Margaret Vos 

Rus,;eU Honncry 

Narasha \\'an 

Krlle Dawson 

Jennifer Mace 

Phll von Schot•nbcrg 

Jul!e Ross 

IV1ike Morgan 

Kathryn Bdlach 

Philip Cooke 

b) Related Party Transactions 

Branch President 

Branch Deputy Pre~idenl 

13ranch Sentor Vtce-Pre~ddent 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Cuswdian 

l3ranch Custodian 

,\1'$I Member's Roll 

1\ssociation Rcpl·csentauve 

t\ssonarion Rcpn·scntati\'c 

!\ ssooalion H..eprcscn ta t1vc 

Association RcprcsetWlUVc 

Association Representative 

Assoaation Representauvc 

/h~ociation Reprc~entativc 

J\ssoetation Reprcsentauvc 

Transactions Wlth Federation J .aw Pty Ltd during 2016 were: 

October 2015 

October 20 15 

October 2015 

Fd.>ruary 20 I(, 

I :ebrnary 2016 

February 2016 

February 2016 

P"ebn•at-y 2016 

February 2016 

februan· 2016 

February 20 16 

Febmary 20 16 

Febrwuy 2016 

Fcbrua.ry 2016 

February 2016 

1:-ebruary 2016 

February 20 16 

Fcbt1.1anr 20 16 
J 

Rent recctvcd by Australian Education Union New South Wales Teachers f.'ederation Branch from 
Fcderatlon J .aw Pry Ltd $38,483 (20 15: $41,981). 

Interest on loan pa.id by l:edcrat.ion Law Pty Ltd to Australian Education lJnion New South Wales Teachers 
Federation Branch $23,022 (20 15: S28,879) 

Inter entity payables paid by Australian Education Union ::-.Jew Sourh Wales Teachers Federation Branch to 
Federation Law Pty Ltd for professionaJ costs and disbursements $507,712 (20 15: $637 ,761). 

The above transactions ·w1th foederatjon Law Pry Ltd are recorded in the accounts of Austtalian Education 
Union New South Wales Teachers Federation Branch and eliminarc on consolidaaon. 
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AUSTRALT AN EDUCt\ TION UNI0:-.1 NEW SOUTH WALES TEACI IERS PEDERA TION BRANCI I 

NOTFS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR TilE FINA:-.JCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECmvffiER 2016 

NOTE 16: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

c) Key Management Personnel Listing 

)ohn Oi.xon 

R<.ld Brown 

Maxine Sharkey 

Michelle Rosicky 

David Wvnne 

Maurie Mulheron 

Gary Zadkovich 

Joan Lemaire 

Denis t;itzgerald 

Tim Mulroy 

Gemma Ackroyd 

Gco ff Turn bull 

Dianne Byers 

1\largan:t Vos 

Russell J lonnery 

Narasha Watt 

Kylie Dawson 

Jt>nnifer Mace 

Phil von Schoenberg 

Julie Ross 

Mike Morgan 

Kathryn Bellach 

Philip Cooke 

Joanna Worrad (l'crm.inatcd December 2016) 

Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Deputy Branch Secretary 

Branch President 

Branch Deputy President 

Branch Senior Vice-President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Vice President 

Branch Custodian 

Branch Custodian 

ATSI Member's Roll 

Association Rcprcsen ta tive 

Association Representative 

Association Representative 

/\ssociation Representative 

Association Representative 

Association Representative 

Association Rcpre~cntative 

Association Representative 

Director of Federation Law 

Compensation paid to key management personnel 

Short-term employee benefits 
Post-employment benefits 
Other long-term benefits 
Termination benefits 
Share based payments 
Total 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
1,501,656 512,045 

192,038 57,759 
126,240 27,942 
180,631 

2,000,565 597,746 
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ACSTRALlAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACI IERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TilE I·INANCL\L ~;TATEMEN'i'S 

FOR THE FI 1Ju"CIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 17: SECTION 272 FAIR WORK (REGISTERED ORGANISATIONS) ACT 2009 

In accordance with the requircmems of the I ·air Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009, the attention of 
members 1s drawn to the provisions of subsections (1) to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows: 

Information to be provided to members or General Manager: 

(1) A member of a reporting unit, or the General Manager, may apply to the reporting unit for specified 
prescribed .information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available ro the person making the 
application. 

(2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in 
which, the infonnation is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the 
application is given to the reporting unit 

(3) A reporting unit must comply ·with an application made under subsection (1). 

NOTE 18: CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash inflows 
Austr:tlian Education Union New South Wales 
'!'cachets Federation 

Total cash inflows 

Cash outflows 
Australian Education Union New South Wales 

Teachers Federation 
Total cash o utflows 

a) Reconciliation of Cash 

2016 
$ 

37,229,112 
37,229,112 

37,768,465 
37,768,465 

CONSOLIDATED 
2015 

$ 

17,719,975 
17,719,975 

13,009,832 
13,009,832 

!•or the purposes of the Statement of Cash Plows, cash includes cash on hand, cash at bank and deposits at 
call. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of the cash flows is reconciled to the 
related Items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

Cash at Bank 
Cash on Hand 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 

$ 

4,173,996 
2,650 

4,176,646 

2015 
$ 

4,702,590 
13,409 

4,715,999 
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AUSTRtV.LI\~ EDUCATION CNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FfNANCIAL STATEl'vl.E.N'l"S 
FOR THE FTNt\'\lCIAL YEAR E DED 31 DHCEMBF.R 2016 

NOTE 18: CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

b) Reconciliation of Profit for the Year to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Profit/(Loss) for the Year 
Non Cash Flows in Profit from Ordinary Ac'lmti,•J: 

Gain on acquisicion 
(Gain) /Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets 
Amortisal..ion 
Deprcciauon 
Cbangu tn /lsJels and Liabilitie.• 
T ncrcase/ (Decrease) in Provision Employee Benefi r 
Decrease/ (Increase) in Receivables 
(lncrease)/Dccreasc in Other Current Assets 
Increase/(Dccrcasc) in Creditors 
rncreasc/(Dccreasc) in Tax Liabilities 
(Incrcase)/Decrease in Deferred Tax As::;ets 
Increase in Other Financial Liabilities / (Decrease) in 
Financial Asset 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

NOTE 19: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
931,010 

114,5113 
154,933 

1.498,975 

90,811 
362,506 
713,439 
255,896 

(289,891) 
80,199 

18,714 

3,931,135 

28,478,177 

(28,080,461) 
(9,590) 
64,274 

512,646 

(1,1 83,484) 
(1 ,282,979) 

2,548,847 
367,950 

81,024 

1,496,404 

The accounung policies and methods adopted in relation to each class of financial as$et and liability are d.Jsdoscd in 
Note 1. 'fhc f·edcration does not parucipate m the usc of dcrtval..ive fmancial instruments. All fmanctal assets and 
liabtlil..ics arc denominated in Australian Dollars. 

a) Credit Risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk, exclud.Jng the value of any collateral o r any other security, at balance 
date to recognise financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provision for doubtful debts, as disclosed 
in the statement of financial performance and notes to the financial statements. 
The Federaaon docs not have any material risk exposure to any single debtor or consolidated entity of 
debtors under financial instruments entered by the Federation. 

Refer to Nate 5B for ageing analysis of trade receivables. 

b) Net Fair Values 

The net fair values of debtors, loans and other amounts arc detemlincd by discounting the cash flows, at the 
market interest rates of similar securities, tO their present values. 

The carrying amount of all fmancial assets and liabiHtic~ docs not exceed their net fair values. All fmancial 
assets (Note 6) are held at amortised cost represen ting held to maturity assets. 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NE\X' SOUTH WAJ,ES TEACHERS PEDERATION BRANCII 

NOTES TO THE I'INANClAl. STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINA.NCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 19: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 

c) Market Risk 

The Federation's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value 'l.vill 
fluch1ate as a result of changes in market interest rates and the effect weighted average interest rates on these 
fmancial assets and liabilities, is as follows: 

CONSOLIDATED 
Weighted Average 

Rate Floating Interest Rate Fixed Interest Rate 
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Invesrments 
Total Interest Bearing Financial 
Assets 

2.93% 
$ $ 

2.95% 30,143,566 26,837,769 

30,143,566 26,837,769 

All other financial assets and liabilities are non-interest bearing. 

Market Risk Sensitivity analysis 

Year 

2016 
2015 

d) Liquidity Risk 

Risk Variable 

Interest 
Interest 

Change in risk 
Variable 

0.5% 
0.5% 

Effect on 
Profit & Loss 

150,718 
134,189 

$ $ 

Equity 
150,718 
134,189 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Federation might be unable to meet its obligations. The Federation 
carefully monitors its liquidity needs by managing cash inflows and outflows on a day to day basis. Specific 
cash reserves are set aside as mentioned in Note 6 and the Statement of Changes in Equity. 
The only financial liability is the retirement benefit obligations as set out in Note 14. It is not expected that 
this liability will be extinguished within the next 12 months and the Officers of the Federation will monitor 
the actuarial deficit and the effect on the Federation's cash flow. 

Current Liability- Trade and Other Payables 

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: 

+91 Days 
Total 0-30 Days 31-60 Davs 61-90 Days PDN.I* 

$ $ $ $ $ 
2016 Consolidated 68,950 63,634 430 - 4,886 
2015 Consolidated 75,429 28,611 46,848 . -

* Past due not impaired 
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AUSTRALIAN ED UCATION UNION NEW SOUTfl WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 20: OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 

PAY ABLES 

O pr.rating T.r.a~c Commitments 

Non-cancellable operating leases con tracted for bu t not capitalised in the fmancial statements 

Payable - minimum lease payments 

N o Later than 12 Months 
Between 12 momhs and 5 Years 

RECEIVABLES 

Operating J ,case Commitments 

CONSOLIDATED 
2016 2015 

$ $ 
68,355 

252,005 
320,360 

138,574 
115,478 
254,052 

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements 

Payable - minimum lease payments 

No Later than 12 Months 
Between 12 months and 5 Years 

NOTE 21: CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

Controlled Entity 
Federation Law Pty Ltd 

2016 
$ 

1,365,936 
3,607.114 
4,973,050 

Country of Origin 

Australia 

2015 
$ 

1,304,448 
4,203,777 
5,508,225 

Ownership Interest 
2016 2015 
% % 

100 100 
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1\CSTRAJ JAN ImUCATION UNIO~ NEW SOUT£1 WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FTNANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 D ECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 22: FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Management of the reporting unit assessed t~1at cash, trade receivables, trade payablcs, and other current liabilities 
approximate theu: carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. 

The fair v:~lue of financial assets and Liabilities is included at the amount which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transaction between willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to csUmate the 
fair values: 

l'a.ir Yalues of the reporting unit's interest-bearing borro ... vings and loans arc dctem1ined by using a 
discount('d cash flow mC'thod. The discount rate used reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end 
of the rcporung period. 111e own performance risk as at 31 December 2016 was assessed to be 
msignificanl. 

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets is derived from quoted market prices in active markets. 

I .ong-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the 
Group based on pa.ramctt:r:. such as interest rates and individual credi t wortluness of the customer. 
Based on th1s evalual:!on, aUowances are taken i.uto account for the expected losses of these 
receivables. As at 31 December 2016 the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances, 
were not materially different from their calculated fair values. 

The following table contains the carrying amounts and related faJr values for the t\ustraltan Education Union New 
Souths \'\'ales Teachers Federation Branch fmancial assers and liabilities: 

CONSOLIDATED 

Financial Assets 
Term dcposnmvestments 
Shareholding in 
Trade Umon Centre \VoUongong 
Total 

Financial Liabilities 
Joint l' unding of Courses with Sydney 
U mvcrsiry 
Total 

Carrying 
Amount 

2016 
$ 

30,143,566 

l09,446 
30,253,012 

Fait Carrying Fait 
Value Amount Value 

2016 2015 2015 
$ $ $ 

26,845,769 

128,160 
26,973,929 
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AUSTR1\UAN EDUCATION UNION NEWSOUTil W.'\J.J•:S TEACHERS FEDERATION DRL\NCH 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEJ\iffiNTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 

NOTE 23: PARENT ENTITY INFORMATION- AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW 
SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

2016 2015 
ASSETS $ $ 

Current Assets 32,215,008 33,022,225 
Non-Current Assets 28,440,645 26,449,968 
Total Assets 60,655,653 59,472,193 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

LIABILITIES 

Current l.iabilitics 10,195,325 9,910,515 
Non-Current Liabilities 18,783,412 21,040,504 
Total Liabilities 28,978,737 30,951,019 

Net Assets 31,676,916 28,521,174 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

EQUITY 
Equity attributable to the ordinary equity 
holders of the entity 
General Fund 9,397,170 6,139,508 
Special Reserve 1984 Annual Conference 17,573,000 18,009,000 
Public Education Fund 4,706,746 4,372,666 
Total Equity 31,676,916 28,521,174 

Financial performance 

2016 2015 
$ $ 

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 906,076 28,490,444 
Other comprehensive Income/ (Loss) 2,243,878 

Total comprehensive Income/(Loss) 3,149,954 28,490,444 
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AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCII 

NOTES TO TI lE FrNANCIAL STA'l'EivlENTS 
FORTI IE l'INAl'\ICIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEl'vfBER 2016 

NOTE 24: ACQUISITIONS 

Acquisition ofNSW Teachers Federation 
On 13th August 201j Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) acquired the assets and liabilities of New South 
Wales Teachers Federation for no consideration. New South \Vales Teachers Federation was subsequently 
dercgistcrcd pursuant to the NSW Industrial Relations Act 1996. Australian Education Union (NSW Branch) was 

then renamed Australian Education Union New South \Xlalcs Teachers rcderation Branch. 

It was deemed that AASB 3 'Business Combinations' would not be applied to the above transaction and a pooling 
of interest methodology would be applied. '!his methodology sets out the acquisition of all assets and liabilities at 
book value at the time of acquisition. As there was no purchase price the surplus of the net assets has been 

reflected as a gain within the statement of profit and loss .. 

The details of the acquisition arc as follows: 

Fair value of consideration transferred 
Recognised amounts of identifiable net assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Trade and other receivables 
Financial assets 
Other current assets 
Total current assets 
Financial assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Total non-current assets 
Total assets 

Trade and other payables 
Short-term provisions 
Total current liabiJities 

Retirement benefit obligations 
Total liabilities 
Total net identifiable assets and net gain on 
acquisition 

Consideration transferred 

2015 
$ 

3,364,865 
1,994,418 

26,739,999 
259,899 

32,359,181 
959,444 

2j,431,849 
210,606 

26,601,899 
58,961,080 

2,653,612 
7,193,443 
9,847,055 

21,033,564 
30,880,619 

28,080,461 

The acquisition ofNSW Teachers Federation was settled for $nil consideration. The total net cash out flow was 
Snil. ' 

NOTE 25: EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE 
The Federation choose to tender for Legal services. The Federation has selected a new flrm, New Law to handle 
legal assistance to both our members and by retainer for legal advice to both the General Secretary and the Senior 
Officers. The law practice ceased trading in December 2016. The Federation is seeking legal advice about how to 
wind up the incorporated entity of Federation Law Pty Ltd 
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AUS'IRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NEW SOUTH WALES TEACHERS FEDERATION BRANCH 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FJNANCIN, YEAR ENDED 31 DECENIBER 2016 

NOTE 26: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 

There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets to the year-end, which would require disclosure in the 
financial statements. 

NOTE 27: ORGANISATION DETAILS 

That registered office and principal place of business of both the Australian Education Union New South Wales 
Teachers Federation Branch and that of its controlled entity Pedcration Law Pty Ltd is: 

23-33 Mary Street Surry I Iills NSW 2010 
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Grant Thornton 

Level17, 383 Kent Stroct 

Sydney NSW 2000 

Correspondence 10: 

Locked Bag 0800 
QVB Post Office 
Sydney NSW 1 230 

T t61 2 8297 2400 
F +61 2 9299 4445 
E info.nsw@au.gt.com 
W www.grantthornton.com.au 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF AUSTRALIAN EDUCATION UNION NSW TEACHERS 
FEDERATION BRANCH 

Auditor's Opinion 
We have audited the fU1anciaJ report of Austrilian E ducation Union NS\Xf Teachers 
Federation Branch (the "Union"), which comprises the statement of fu1ancial position as at 
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information to the fU1ancial report and the 

statement by the Directors of the Responsible E ntity. 

In om opinion, the fuuncial report of Australian Education Union NSW Teachers 

Federation Branch 

presents fairly, in all material respects, the Union's financial position as at 31 

December 2016 and of its performance and cash flows for the year then ended, 

u complies with Australian Accounting Standards and the relevant legislation, 

111 management appropriately applied the going concern basis of accounting, and 

1v complies with the requirements of Fair \Xfork (Registered Organisations) Regulation 
2009 and Part 3 of Chapter 8 of Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009. 

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Ltd ACN 130 913 594 
a subsidiary or related entity of Grant Thornton Australia Ltd ABN 41 127 556 389 

'G1am Thornton' refers to lhe twand undet which lhc Gran! ThornlOn member rKms PfOvide assurance, tax and adVJSOfY se(VI(es 10 ther dents and/or refets to one or rTIOfC mermer firms. as the 
conleKt requres. Granr. Thornton Austrab ltd fs a member fvmof Grant Thomton lnlematiooal Ltd (GTIL). GTil and lhe member fttms ate n<X a world'Mde partnefship. GTIL and each member firm 
is a separate ~I en11ry. SeMces are delivefed by the member frms. GTIL does not p~ovide services 10 clients. GTIL and its member fKms arc nOI agents of, and do not oblgate one anolhef and 
are nolllable for one another's acts or omssions. ln tne Ausua~an context only. the use of tre term 'Grant ThorntOtl' may relet to Grant Thomtoo Australia l.lmded ABN 41127 556 389 and b 
AuWalan subsldltuies and rctated entties. Glll is no1 an Aus&Jalan related entity to Grant Thomton Ausl!alia Limited. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. 
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Grant Thornton 

Basis for Auditor's Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with .Australian Auditing Standards. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Re.rponsibililie.l'for 

the Audit of the rl na!lcial Report section of our report. \XIe are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 

Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethiufor Profmiona/ A ctvuntants (the Code) that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. \Y/e have also fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

\XIe believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion. 

Other Matter 

The signor is an Approved Auditor (who holds a current Public Practice Certificate) with 

the Charted Accountants Australian and New Zealand and is a registered company auditor. 

Responsibility of the Branch Directors of the Responsible Entity for the 

financial report 

The Directors of the Responsible Entity of the Union are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and Fair Work Act 2009 (Registered Organisations). This responsibility includes 

such internal controls as d1e Directors of the Responsible Entity determine are necessary to 
enable the preparation of the financial report to be free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Directors of the Responsible Entity are responsible for 
assessing d1e Union's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management eid1er intends to liquidate the Union or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Union's fmancial 

reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fmancial report as a 

whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing 

Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of this fmancial report. 

A further description of our responsibilities for d1e audit of the fmancial report is located at 
the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: 
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http:/(\V\vw.auasb.gov.au/auditors tiles / ar3.pdf . This description forms part of our 

auditor's report. 

Report on the recovery of wages activity 
The Committee of Management :ue responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 

recovery of wages actiYity financial report in accordance with section 253(2)(c) of the Fair 
\'(fork Act 2009 (Registered Organisations). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
the recovery of wages activity financial report, based on our audit conducted m accordance 

with Australian Auditing Standards. \Ve have been advised that no recovery of wages 
activity has been undertaken in the current fmancial year. Accordingly we have not been 

instructed by the committee of management to include in the scope of the audit regu.ired 
under subsection 257(1) of the RO Act all recovery of wages activity by d1e reporting unit 

from which revenues had been derived for the fmancial year in respect of such activity. 

j '""" t ~~" +u""' 
GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD 
Chartered Accountants 

t\ G R.igele 
Partner - Audit & Assurance 

Sydney, 4 April 201 7 
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11 Exhibition Street 

Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne VIC 3001 

 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au  

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

 

 

25 January 2017 

Branch Secretary 

Australian Education Union 

New South Wales Teachers Federation (NSWTF) Branch 

By Email: mail@nswtf.org.au 

 

Dear Branch Secretary, 

Re:  Lodgement of Financial Report - [FR2016/362] 
Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act)  

 
The financial year of the Australian Education Union-New South Wales Teachers Federation (NSWTF) 
Branch (the reporting unit) ended on 31 December 2016. 

This is a courtesy letter to remind you of the obligation to prepare and lodge the financial report for the 
reporting unit by the due date under s.268 of the RO Act, that being within 14 days after the meeting 
referred to in s.266 of the RO Act.  

Also you are reminded of the obligation to prepare and lodge a statement showing the relevant particulars 
in relation to each loan, grant or donation of an amount exceeding $1,000 for the reporting unit during its 
financial year. Section 237 requires this statement to be lodged with the FWC within 90 days of the end of 
the reporting unit’s financial year, that is on or before 31 March 2017. 

The new Registered Organisations Commission 

The Registered Organisations Commission (the ROC) will be established in 2017.   

Statements of loans, grants and donation and financial reports must be lodged with the Fair Work 
Commission until the ROC is established. Once the ROC is established, they must be lodged with the 
ROC.   

It is not yet known when in 2017 the ROC will be established. The Fair Work Commission will be providing 
information on the transition to the ROC through its subscription service and its website.  For details about 
the subscription service, go to Subscriptions and subscribe to the Registered organisations information 
service. 

Where to lodge Statements of Loans Grants and Donations and Financial Reports 

 Before the ROC is established From establishment of the ROC  

Where to lodge Lodge your statement of loans grants 
donations and your financial report 
with the Fair Work Commission 

Lodge your statement of loans grants 
donations  and your financial report 
and with the ROC 

How to lodge The easiest way to lodge is via email: 
orgs@fwc.gov.au 

Lodgement methods are not yet 
known 

 

mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
https://www.fwc.gov.au/about-us/reports-publications/subscribe-updates
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au


 
11 Exhibition Street 

Melbourne VIC 3000 

GPO Box 1994 

Melbourne VIC 3001 

 

Telephone : (03) 8661 7777 

Email : orgs@fwc.gov.au  

Internet : www.fwc.gov.au 

 

 

Our focus this year: timelines and disclosure of loans, grants and donations  

Over the past year we have noted issues in organisations’ financial reports relating to timelines and how 
loans, grants and donations are reported. We will be focusing closely on these areas this year. Please find 
attached below fact sheets relating to these requirements or alternatively visit our website for information 
regarding financial reporting timelines and loans, grants and donations. 

Timelines 

The RO Act sets out a particular chronological order in which financial documents and statements must be 
prepared, audited, provided to members and presented to a meeting. For your assistance, the attached 
Timeline/Planner summarises these requirements. 

As stated above, section 237 requires the loans, grants and donations statement to be lodged with the 
FWC within 90 days of the end of the reporting unit’s financial year, that is on or before 31 March 2017. A 
sample statement of loans, grants or donations is available at sample documents.  

Fact sheets, guidance notes and model statements 

Fact sheets and guidance notes in relation to financial reporting under the RO Act are provided on the Fair 
Work Commission (FWC) website. This includes a model set of financial statements which have been 
developed by the FWC. It is not obligatory to use this model but it is a useful resource to ensure 
compliance with the RO Act, the Reporting Guidelines and the Australian Accounting Standards. The 
model statements, Reporting Guidelines and other resources can be accessed through our website under 
Financial Reporting in the Running a Registered Organisation section.  

Civil penalties may apply 

It should be noted that s.268 and s.237 are civil penalty provisions. If a loan, grant or donation over 
$1000 has been made, failure to lodge a statement of loans, grants and donations may result in legal 
proceedings being issued with the possibility of a pecuniary penalty (up to $54,000 for a body corporate 
and $10,800 for an individual per contravention) being imposed upon your organisation and/or an officer 
whose conduct led to the contravention. 

Failure to lodge a financial report may result in legal proceedings being issued with the possibility of a 
pecuniary penalty (up to $54,000 for a body corporate and $10,800 for an individual per contravention) 
being imposed upon your organisation and/or an officer whose conduct led to the contravention. 

Contact 

Should you wish to seek any clarification in relation to the above, email orgs@fwc.gov.au.  

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 
Marianne Kay 
Adviser 
Regulatory Compliance Branch 

mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
https://www.fwc.gov.au/documents/documents/organisations/factsheets/ro_fs_frtimelines.pdf
https://www.fwc.gov.au/documents/documents/organisations/factsheets/ro-loans-grants-donations.pdf
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/fact-sheets-templates-webinars
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/running-a-registered-organisation/financial-reporting
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au


 

 

Financial reporting timelines 

Financial reports are to be lodged with the Fair Work Commission (the Commission) within 14 days 

of the meeting at which the financial reports have been presented, by completing the steps as 

outlined below. 

See Fact sheet—Financial reporting for an explanation of each of these steps. 

 
Reporting unit must keep proper financial records 

 

 

    

 
STEP 1: Reporting unit to prepare: 

General Purpose Financial Report, 
Committee of Management Statement, and 

Operating Report 

 

 

    

 
STEP 2: Auditor’s Report 

Auditor to prepare and provide to Reporting unit 

 

 

    

 

 

 
STEP 3: provide to members 

at least 21 days before 

General Meeting 

 

 
STEP 3: provide to members 

within 5 months of end of 

financial year 

 

 

     

 
STEP 4: Present to a 

General Meeting of Members 

 

 
STEP 4: Present to Committee 

of Management Meeting 

 

 

 

 
STEP 5: Lodge with the Fair Work Commission 

Lodge all Reports and Designated Officers Certificate with the 

Commission within 14 days of the meeting at which 

financial reports are presented 

 

 

© Commonwealth of Australia 2016 

 

 

Subject to rules of 

organisation 



 

Fact Sheet - Loans, Grants & Donations 

The Loans, Grants & Donations Requirements  

The Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act) requires an organisation or branch to 

lodge a loans, grants and donations statement (the statement) within 90 days of the ending of the 

financial year.  

Under the General Manager’s Reporting Guidelines, a reporting unit’s General Purpose Financial Report 

(the financial report) must break down the amounts of grants and donations (see below). The figures in 

the financial report will be compared to the loans, grants and donations statement. 

The Loans, Grants & Donations Statement 

Section 237 of the RO Act applies to every loan, grant and donation made by an organisation or branch 

during the financial year that exceed $1000. The following information must be supplied to the 

Commission for each relevant loan, grant or donation: 

the amount, 

the purpose, 

the security (if it is a loan), 

the name and address of the person to whom it was made,* and 

the arrangements for repaying the loan.* 

*The last two items are not required if the loan, grant or donation was made to relieve a member of the 

organisation (or their dependent) from severe financial hardship. 

The statement must be lodged within 90 days of the end of the financial year and the Commission has a 

Template Loans, Grants and Donations Statement on its website. The Commission encourages branches 

and organisations to lodge the statement even if all of the figures are NIL.  

Common misconceptions 

Over the years, staff of the Commission have noted that there are some common misunderstandings 

made in relation to the Statement. They include: 

Misconception Requirement 

 
Only reporting units must lodge 

the Statement.  
All branches and organisations, regardless of whether 

they lodge a financial report, must lodge the statement 

within 90 days of the end of the financial year. An 

organisation cannot lodge a single statement to cover all 

of its branches. 

 
Employees can sign the 

Statement.  
The statement must be signed by an elected officer of the 

relevant branch. 

 
Statements can be lodged with 

the financial report.  
The deadline for the statement is much shorter (90 days) 

and if it is lodged with the financial report it is likely to be 

late. 

https://www.fwc.gov.au/documents/organisations/factsheets/RO_sampledoc_5.doc


 

Grants & Donations within the Financial Report 

Item 16(e) of the General Manager’s Reporting Guidelines requires the reporting unit to separate the line 

items relating to grants and donations into grants or donations that were $1000 or less and those that 

exceeded $1000. 

As such, the note in the financial report relating to grants and donations will have four lines. 

In the Commission’s Model Statements the note appears as follows: 

Note 4E: Grants or donations* 

Grants: 2016 2015 

  Total paid that were $1,000 or less - - 

  Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - - 

Donations:   

  Total paid that were $1,000 or less - - 

  Total paid that exceeded $1,000 - - 

Total grants or donations - - 

 

Item 17 of the General Manager’s Reporting Guidelines requires that these line items appear in the 

financial report even if the figures are NIL. 

Implications for filing the Financial Report 

During their review of the 2016 financial report staff of the Commission will confirm that the figures in the 

financial report match the disclosures made in the statement. Any inconsistencies in these figures will be 

raised with the organisation or branch for explanation and action. 

This may involve lodging an amended loans, grants or donations statement. Any failure to lodge a loans, 

grants or donations statement or lodging a statement that is false or misleading can attract civil penalties 

under the RO Act. 

If a reporting unit did not fully comply with these requirements in their 2015 financial report, its filing letter 

will have included a statement reminding the reporting unit of its obligations.  

It is strongly recommended that all reporting units review their filing letters from the previous financial 

year to ensure any targeted concerns are addressed in their latest financial report. Failure to address 

these individual concerns may mean that a financial report cannot be filed. 

 

Previous financial reports and filing letters are available from the Commission’s website. 

Further information 

If you have any further questions relating to the loan, grant and donation disclosure requirements in the 

statement or the financial report, please contact the Regulatory Compliance Branch on orgs@fwc.gov.au  

 

 

 

© Commonwealth of Australia 2016 

This fact sheet is not intended to be comprehensive. It is designed to assist in gaining an understanding of 

the Fair Work Commission and its work. The Fair Work Commission does not provide legal advice. 

https://www.fwc.gov.au/documents/organisations/reporting_guidelines/s253-Reporting-Guidelines-fourth-edition.pdf
https://www.fwc.gov.au/documents/organisations/reporting_guidelines/Model-financial-statements-2015-16.docx
https://www.fwc.gov.au/registered-organisations/find-registered-organisations
mailto:orgs@fwc.gov.au
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